
           

                          TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL
   Tuesday, May 28, 2013

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
18880 SW Martinazzi Avenue
      Tualatin, OR 97062

WORK SESSION begins at 5:30 p.m. *Note start time
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

 

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Monique Beikman

Councilor Wade Brooksby     Councilor Frank Bubenik

Councilor Joelle Davis           Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Ed Truax
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for citizen comments on its agenda - Item C, following Announcements, at which time
citizens may address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda with each speaker
limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent of the
Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

  PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


  PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.



 
OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 28,
2013

             

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Introduction of Republic Service General Manager Derek Ruckman
 

2. New Employee Introduction: Jerry Postema, Public Works Director
 

3.   Summer Activities Update
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows citizens to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further
investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will first ask staff, the public and
Councilors if there is anyone who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion
and consideration. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered individually at the
end of this Agenda under, I) Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire Consent Agenda,
with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is then voted upon by
roll call under one motion.

 

1.   Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the City Council Work Session and
Regular Meeting on May 13, 2013.

 

2.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5141-13 Amending the City of Tualatin Fee
Schedule and Rescinding Resolution No. 5118-12

 

3.   Consideration of Resolution 5144-13 Adopting a Citywide Records Request Policy
and Rescinding Resoltion No. 4797-08.

 

4.   Consideration of a New Liquor License Application for Grochan Cellars.
 

5.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5138-13 to Grant a Conditional Use Permit
toTualatin Animal Clinic to Allow a Veterinary Clinic with Practice Limited to Small
Animals in the Central Commercial (CC) Planning District at 8700 SW Cherokee
Street (Tax Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot 01000) (CUP-13-02).

 

6.   Consideration of Resolution 5145-13 Directing the Architectural Review Board to
review and comment on the proposed Nyberg Rivers Master Plan MP-13-01



 

E. SPECIAL REPORTS
 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Legislative or Other
 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Quasi-Judicial
 

H. GENERAL BUSINESS
 

1.   Review and Discuss Input about Chickens in Single-Family Areas
 

I. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

 

J. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 

K. ADJOURNMENT
 

 



   

City Council Meeting   B. 3.           
Meeting Date: 05/28/2013  

SPECIAL
REPORTS:

Summer Activities Update

SPECIAL REPORTS
Summer Activities Update

SUMMARY
An overview of programs and services in Tualatin this summer. 

Attachments
Attachment A-Summer Activities Update



Attachment A- Summer Activity Update
1 of 13



Gang Resistance Education and Training 

☼  Targeting 6th-9th graders 

☼  5 sessions; up to 250 kids 

☼  Team building games  

☼  Emphasis on “At Risk Kids” 

☼  Teach responsibility to self, others and community 
 

Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 
2 of 13

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Targeting 6th-9th graders  5 sessions; up to 250 kids  Team Building Games   Emphasis on “At Risk Kids”  Teaching responsibility to self, others and community



☼ Volunteer Participants 

☼ Park maintenance  

☼ Environmental education 

☼ Service learning  

Volunteer Services in partnership with  the Operations Department host 

 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

3 of 13

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Volunteer Services in partnership with the Operations Department host TEAM Tualatin. This popular volunteer opportunity allow teens a close-up view of how Tualatin maintains our parks, greenways, streets., sewers, and buildings. Watch for TEAM performing these tasks this summer; watering the nearly 10,000 trees planted last winter, picking up litter, painting fire hydrants, removing graffiti, and keeping Tualatin’s healthy and beautiful. We welcome Andrew Bonica as the new TEAM Tualatin leader. 



☼  June 24 – August 2 at Browns Ferry Community Park 

☼  A self-guided tour of Tualatin’s art, cultural & natural history 

  ☼ Friday nights,  6:30 pm at Tualatin Commons July 5 – August 30 

Attachment A- Summer Activity Update
4 of 13



☼ Reel Fun Thursdays 

☼ Fun Fridays 

☼ Antique & Classic Car Show 
Saturday July 13 

☼ Community-wide Garage Sale 
Saturday, August 17 

Attachment A- Summer Activity Update
5 of 13



Attachment A- Summer Activity Update
6 of 13



Kids 

☼  Summer in the Park Day Camp 

☼  YMCA /Challenger Sports 
 
Teens 

☼  Teen Adventure Camp 

☼  Classes and Trips 
 
Adults 

☼  Fitness 

☼  Creative Arts 

☼  Lifelong Learning 

☼  Wellness and Support Services 
 
Events 

☼  Movies on the Commons 

☼  Centennial Fireworks 
 

 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

7 of 13



 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

8 of 13



Kayak and Canoe Rentals at 
Brown’s Ferry Park 

 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

9 of 13



Ongoing lectures, programs, displays, and activities throughout the summer. 
 

Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 
10 of 13



Outdoors at Tualatin Commons 
Tuesdays, June 18 - August 13, 7:00pm  

Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 
11 of 13



Volunteer Services in partnership with the Library Division offer 

☼  Assist library staff with the Summer Reading program 

☼  Service learning 

☼  Job experience 

 

 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

12 of 13



 
Attachment A- Summer Activity Update 

13 of 13



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the City Council Work Session and
Regular Meeting on May 13, 2013.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve minutes from the City Council Work Session and
Regular Meeting on May 13, 2013.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council adopt the attached minutes.

Attachments: City Council Work Session Minutes of May 13, 2013
City Council Minutes of May 13, 2013



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION FOR
MAY 12, 2013  

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Council President Monique Beikman; Councilor Wade Brooksby;
Councilor Frank Bubenik; Councilor Joelle Davis; Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor
Ed Truax 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Kent Barker;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Deputy
City Manager Sara Singer; Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City
Recorder Nicole Morris; Information Services Manager Lance Harris; Engineering
Manager Kaaren Hofmann; Maintenance Services Division Manager Clayton
Reynolds; Management Analyst Ben Bryant; Assistant City Manager Alice Rouyer 

 

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m.
 

               

1. Tualatin Tomorrow Vision & Strategic Action Plan Update.   

 
  Deputy City Manager Sara Singer and Tualatin Tomorrow Chair Candice Kelly

presented the Tualatin Tomorrow Vision and Strategic Plan Update. Chair Kelly
briefed the Council on the status of the consultant selection. She stated that the
purpose of hiring the consultant is to amend the plan to reflect the current
community needs and aspirations and develop a comprehensive public
involvement strategy to update the plan. The committee met on May 1 st and is
recommending J. Robertson and Co. as the consultant for this project. The next
steps with the consultant is to develop a project schedule and confirm the public
involvement strategy.

Councilor Truax had questions regarding the need for a consultant. Councilor
Bubenik addressed Councilor Truax stating that the five year update of the
Tualatin Tomorrow Vision plan allows for the goals and strategies to be made
current with the communities current needs. He also noted that the consultant’s
expertise in gathering community input and feedback and the tools they have
available are important in the process. Deputy City Manager Singer also noted
that the consultant will help with community outreach and then take the
information that is gathered and compile the document. Mayor Ogden also noted
that we do not have extra staff available to complete special projects of this
nature, so it is important to hire an expert to help compile a meaningful document.

Mayor Ogden and Councilor Grimes thanked the advisory committee for their time
and efforts on this project.

 

2. Council Building Feasibility Study.   

 
 

May 13, 2013
1 of 4 

  



  Deputy City Manager Sara Singer presented information regarding a Council
Building Feasibility Study. She noted that this discussion is being driven by the
application recieved for the Nyberg Rivers Development which includes the
construction of Seneca Street in accordance with the city’s Transportation System
Plan (TSP) and the Central Urban Renewal District (CURD) Plan. Deputy City
Manager Singer presented several options for consideration regarding the future
of the Council Building. The City has reached out to SRG Partners, Inc. as they
have a long history of working with the city to potentially conduct a feasibility study.
The staff then could use the assumptions provided to examine the options and
begin the public outreach process. The staff is seeking council direction on this
proposal.

Councilor Truax would like to see this process begin right away and begin working
to gather community input before the City approves the application. Councilor
Truax expressed concerns over the timeframe of actually being able to complete
the study and gather the necessary feedback in the application approval
timeframe. Deputy City Manager Singer responded that the study will take 60 days
to complete.

Mayor Ogden expressed concerns over the need to rush into the feasibility study
unless it is determined that it is absolutely needed based on the traffic study. He
would like to make sure we are studying the right issues. City Manager Lombos
stated that if the conclusion is that Seneca Street goes through that we will want to
be on the same schedule as the developer, so we are in a position where we will
need to move forward with the feasibility study. Mayor Ogden asked when we
would know for sure if Seneca Street will need to go through. Assistant City
Manager Rouyer stated that we will have additional information regarding the
traffic analysis in June.

Councilor Truax stated he would like to move forward with the feasibility. Mayor
Ogden agreed that the analysis is worthwhile but expressed concerns over the
scope of the study until there is clarification on whether Seneca Street is required
or not. The Council directed staff to move forward with the feasibility study as
presented.

City Manager Lombos asked the Council how they would like the public
involvement strategy to be presented. Councilor Grimes wants to make sure that
there is plenty of time for citizens to weigh-in and gather feedback. Deputy City
Manager Singer said she will present a defined schedule and plan at a future
Council meeting.

 

3. Water Conservation Plan Update and Other Regional Water Issues.   

 
  Engineering Manager Kaaren Hofmann presented the updates to the Water

Conservation Plan. She stated that the number of connections in the city has
grown by about 1% but the overall amount of water sold has decreased by 12%.
The decrease is due to water conservation efforts and changes in the economy.
Some of the updates to the plan included using water more efficiently at city
facilities, free leak detection for customers, and several other water conservation
marketing efforts. No major changes to the plan are being proposed at this time.

Councilor Truax noted that the city’s membership with the Regional Water

May 13, 2013
2 of 4 

  



Councilor Truax noted that the city’s membership with the Regional Water
Consortium is one of the biggest bargains we receive as they do all the major
water conservation efforts. Mayor Ogden asked about the progress we are making
in conservation. Manager Hofmann stated that we have a 12% decrease which is
very good.

Assistant City Manager Rouyer addressed issues with the summer interruptible
water purchase with the City of Portland. She stated that the City had received a
letter from the City of Portland stating that they would only sell us this water under
new terms which is in violation of our existing contract. The City will be responding
in writing letting the City of Portland know that we will be evoking our rights to
arbitration regarding this matter. She will also be meeting with the director this
Wednesday to discuss the matter further. The Council will be updated on the
matter at a future meeting.

Assistant City Manager Rouyer also addressed regional water issues regarding
Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD). TVWD is looking at drawing water from the
Willamette River through an agreement with Wilsonville. In order to receive water
from this location they would need to use the right-of-way for the 124 th Street
project. In accordance with our intergovernmental agreement with TVWD they
would need to notify the city of intent to move forward with this project and we
would need to draft a response. It is likely that they will ask for the city’s
participation in an engineering feasibility study.

 

4. Council Meeting Agenda Review, Communications & Roundtable.
 
  Councilor Davis noted that Community Action Partnership had a very successful

fundraiser again this year and thanked the community for their support of this
group.

Councilor Bubenik updated the Council on the status of the Washington Children
and Families Commission funding. He stated that the legislature has not made a
decision on the bills related to the Children and Families Commission. At this time
many facilities are closing due to the lack of funding and will not reopen unless
something in lethe legislature changes.

Mayor Ogden briefed the Council on the Southwest Corridor Steering Committee
status. The Committee's objective is to narrow the alternatives by July. He noted
that at the meeting he attended today it was the first time that hard data had been
provided to the group that suggested operating costs and ridership information.
The committee is scheduled next week to begin economic outreach to the public.

 

 

ADJOURNMENT

The work session adjourned at 6:26 p.m.

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

May 13, 2013
3 of 4 

  



Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

May 13, 2013
4 of 4 

  



 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Council President Monique Beikman; Councilor Frank Bubenik;
Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor Ed Truax 

Absent: Councilor Wade Brooksby; Councilor Joelle Davis 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Kent Barker;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Deputy
City Manager Sara Singer; Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City
Recorder Nicole Morris; Information Services Manager Lance Harris; Assistant
Planner Colin Cortes; Engineering Manager Kaaren Hofmann; Teen Program
Specialist Julie Ludemann; Maintenance Services Division Manager Clayton
Reynolds; Assistant City Manager Alice Rouyer 

 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Youth Advisory Council Update for May, 2013   

 
  Members of the Youth Advisory Council (YAC) presented a PowerPoint on their

latest activities and upcoming events. The 2013 Project FRIENDS anti-bullying
workshop was held on April 29 with 225 students attending from two local schools.
 The Project FREINDS program received national recognition in the National
Leagues of Cities publication. Summer Movies on the Commons and other
upcoming events were covered.

Mayor Ogden congratulated YAC members on the success of Project FRIENDS
and on being recognized nationally. 

 

2. Announcement of the 2013 "If I Were Mayor..." Poster and Essay Contest Winners.   

 
  Recreation Program Specialist Julie Ludemann presented a PowerPoint outlining

  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 13,
2013  

May 13, 2013
1 of 6 

  



  Recreation Program Specialist Julie Ludemann presented a PowerPoint outlining
the "If I Where Mayor..." contest. The program provides a unique opportunity for
local government involvement amongst youth. It is sponsored by the Oregon
Mayors Association and this is the second year Tualatin has participated. The
4-5th grade poster contest winner, Marleigh Aexander, and Middle School essay
contest winner, Claire Glasser, where presented with $50 checks. Their
entries were sent on to the statewide competition. Mayor Ogden congratulated
both winners.

 

3. Proclamation Declaring Saturday May 18, 2013 as National Kids to Parks Day in
Tualatin

  

 
  Council President Beikman stated that over 250 cities, town and councils across

the country have issued Kids to Parks proclamations this year. She acknowledged
that Kids to Parks is designed to encourage children across the country to explore
their neighborhood parks and discover close to home history, nature, and
adventure. She invited families to come out to Browns Ferry Park on Saturday,
May 18, 2013 from 1:00 to 4:00 to participate in our own local celebration of Kids
to Parks Day.

Council President Beikman read the proclamation declaring May 18th, 2013 as
National Kids to Park Day in the City of Tualatin.
 

 

4. Proclamation Declaring May as Older Americans Month in Tualatin   

 
  Councilor Truax preceded the Older Americans Month Proclamation by stating

that the 2010 U.S. Census lists about 26% of Tualatin residents as 50 or older. He
noted that the local Meals on Wheels program will serve about 15,000 meals at
the Juanita Pohl Center and to homes this fiscal year. He acknowledged that the
Juanita Pohl Center has delivered social, fitness, recreational, nutrition and other
important services to older adults for 31 consecutive years.

Councilor Truax read the proclamation declaring May as Older Americans month
in the City of Tualatin.

 

5. Proclamation Declaring May 12 - 18, 2013 as National Police Week   

 
  Councilor Bubenik stated that in 1962, President John F. Kennedy signed a

proclamation which designated May 15th as “Peace Officers Memorial Day” and
the week in which that date falls as Police Week. National Police Week is held in
honor of the Federal, State and Municipal Officers who have been killed or disabled
in the line of duty. The Tualatin Police Department and its officers provide the
highest quality services and are committed to the highest professional standards.
They are working in partnership with the community to meet the challenges of
reducing crime, creating a safe environment, and improving quality of life. 

Councilor Bubenik read the proclamation declaring May 12-18, 2013 as National
Police Week.

May 13, 2013
2 of 6 

  



Mayor Ogden thanked the police department for all they do for the citizens of
Tualatin.

 

6. Proclamation Declaring May 19-25, 2013 as Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
Week

  

 
  Councilor Grimes read the proclamation declaring May 19-25, 2013 as Emergency

Medical Services week in the City of Tualatin.

Mayor Ogden presented the proclamation plaque to Metro West Ambulance. 
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows citizens to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further
investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future
meeting.

 
  Dale Potts invited the citizens of Tualatin to attend a Memorial Day Celebration on

May 27, 11a.m., at Winona Cemetery. There will be a ceremony followed by a free
picnic. Mayor Ogden thanked Mr. Potts for organizing this event again this year as
last year was a great success. 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will first ask staff, the public and
Councilors if there is anyone who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for
discussion and consideration. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, I) Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The
entire Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be
discussed, is then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Councilor Ed Truax, SECONDED by Council President Monique

Beikman to approve the consent agenda. 
  Vote:  5 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the City Council Work Session and
Regular Meeting on April 22, 2013 and the Special Work Session on April 23, 2013

  

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No 5142-13  Awarding the Bid for the 2013 Pavement
Maintenance Program

  

 

3. Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Washington County
for a Landscaped Median in SW Lower Boones Ferry Road at the Bridgeport
Apartments

  

 

4. Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Tualatin Valley Water
District and the City of Portland for Engineering Services to Evaluate an
Emergency Intertie for the Water Systems

  

 

5. Consideration of Resolution  No.  5139-13   Authorizing City Staff to Negotiate to
Acquire Easements for the SW Martinazzi Avenue Project

  

 

May 13, 2013
3 of 6 

  



6. Consideration of Appointment of Brian Starns as Municipal Judge Pro Tem.   

 

E. SPECIAL REPORTS
 

1. Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue Report Presented By Chief Mike Duyck
 
  Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVFR) Chief Mike Duyck presented an update.

TVFR responded to 2,500 incidents within the City of Tualatin last year and a large
portion were emergency medical related. He noted that 911 is a growing safety net
for the community due to the lack of health insurance. Because of the lack of
health care coverage TVFR is actively participating in health care reform and is the
leader in its field. TVFR is still working on the $77.5 million capital bond updates
and they have completed upgrades to several facilities including facilities in
Tualatin. They have also held many events in Tualatin related to community risk
reduction.

Mayor Ogden thanked TVFR for their service and dedication to the City of Tualatin.
 

2. Quarterly Financial Update   

 
  Finance Director Don Hudson presented the quarterly financial report for the third

quarter of Fiscal Year 2013. Revenues and Expenditures in Operating funds are
tracking as expected. Building fund revenues are exceeding estimates. This
quarter, network switches (paid for through a grant from MACC) were replaced, as
well as three police vehicles. Director Hudson also noted that the online
registration process for recreation programs is popular, with almost 100% of all
registrations being done on-line. The fiscal year 2013/2014 budget meetings will
begin on May 14th.

 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Quasi-Judicial
 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5138-13  a Conditional Use Permit for Tualatin
Animal Clinic to Allow a Veterinary Clinic with Practice Limited to Small Animals in
the Central Commercial (CC) Planning District at 8700 SW Cherokee Street (Tax
Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot 01000) (CUP-13-02)

  

 
  Mayor Ogden opened the Conditional Use Hearing. He read the rules for the

hearing in accordance with ORS 197.763(5) and (6) and ORS 197.796(3)(b).

Councilor Truax disclosed that he has had contacts with both the applicant and
staff regarding the process for applying for the necessary permits.

Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich and Assistant Planner Colin Cortes
presented CUP 13-02 for the Tualatin Animal Clinic. The relocation of the clinic
requires a conditional use permit. Assistant Planner Cortes discussed the
conditions and criteria for approval. He stated that the applicant does meet the
conditions for approval.

Applicants Arthur Ghilea and Mike Han spoke on behalf of their application. They
requested that the Council approve their application and requested a special

May 13, 2013
4 of 6 

  



condition to delay the parking improvements that are required.

The following spoke in support of the conditional use permit: Christina Lapin, Gaye
Waklin, Tamara Sutherlin, Melissa Lockhart, and Marsha Garen.

Councilor Truax expressed concerns with the request to delay the parking
improvements and what it would mean for the applicant. Assistant City Manager
Rouyer stated that the Council has the ability to delay the conditions if they choose
and that denial of the CUP will still allow them to occupy the premises.  

Mayor Ogden asked several questions regarding what needed to be accomplished
to meet the conditions, what used to occupy the location and why it did not meet
compliance then. Staff stated that occupants before did not need to meet the
requirements at that time and the improvements that these tenants would need to
make would be in regards to increasing the number of spaces, curbing,
landscaping and storm water treatment.

Discussion ensued amongst staff and applicant over the length of time that would
be needed to complete the improvements. Assistant City Manager
Rouyer requested that the Council set a time frame within 2 years for enforcement
purposes. The applicant requested longer due to financial reasons.  

Mayor Ogden closed the oral portion of the hearing.
 

  MOTION by Councilor Ed Truax, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes to
approve Resolution No. 5138-13 a conditional use permit for Tualatin Animal Clinic
to allow a veterinary clinic with practice limited to small animals in the Central
Commercial (CC) Planning District at 8700 SW Cherokee Street (Tax Map 2S1
23AA, Tax Lot 01000) (CUP-13-02) with the special condition that the off-street
parking must be complete within 30 (thirty) months of the date the resolution is
passed.

  Vote:  5 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

G. GENERAL BUSINESS
 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5140-13  to Grant a Conditional Use Permit to
Allow a Small-Lot Subdivision in the Medium Low Density (RML) Planning District
at 9355 SW Stono Drive (Tax Map 2S1 35AC, Tax Lot13900) (CUP 13-01).

  

 
  MOTION by Councilor Ed Truax, SECONDED by Councilor Frank Bubenik to

adopt Resolution No. 5140-13 to grant a conditional use permit to Darter
Construction, LLC for a small-lot subdivision in the Medium Low Density (RML)
Planning District, at 9355 SW Stono Drive (CUP 13-01).

  Vote:  5 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

H. ADJOURNMENT
 
  Mayor Ogden adjourned the meeting at 8:49 p.m.
 

 

May 13, 2013
5 of 6 

  



Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

 / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

May 13, 2013
6 of 6 

  



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos

FROM: Don Hudson, Finance Director
Lisa Thorpe, Program Coordinator - Finance

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5141-13 Amending the City of Tualatin Fee
Schedule and Rescinding Resolution No. 5118-12

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Whether to update and amend the City of Tualatin Fee Schedule

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution amending the City of Tualatin Fee
Schedule and rescinding Resolution No. 5118-12

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The City of Tualatin Fee Schedule is broken into three groups, which are updated every three
years on a rotating cycle.  Since the process began in 2004, fees have been updated according
to the rise in the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  For the past several cycles, the City Council has
directed staff to consider full cost recovery when setting and reviewing fees. 

The group of fees to be updated this year are fees for the Administration Department, Finance
Department, Police Department and Municipal Court . Fees were analyzed against the cost to
provide the service, as well as compared to comparable entities.  Fees have also been updated
to reflect current technology (i.e. CD instead of tapes and thumb drives) and current practice. 
Fees have also been added in the Administration Department related to Public Records
Requests. 

Attachments: Attachment A-Resolution w/Exhibit A, Fee Schedule
Attachment B- Fee Schedule w/Mark-Ups



RESOLUTION NO. 5141-13 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF TUALATIN FEE SCHEDULE AND 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 5118-12 
 
 
WHEREAS the City Council has the authority to set fees for materials and services 

provided by the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS the City’s costs incurred in providing materials and services have 
increased since the fee schedule was last evaluated; and 
 

WHEREAS Resolution No. 5118-12, adopted August 27, 2012, which last 
amended the City of Tualatin Fee Schedule, must now be rescinded. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 

OREGON, that: 
 

Section 1.  Fees listed under the Administration Department, Finance 
Department, Police Department and Municipal Court are established as set forth in 
“Exhibit A”, which is attached and incorporated by reference. 
 

Section 2.  All other fees provided in the City of Tualatin Fee Schedule remain 
unchanged, as set forth in “Exhibit A”, which is attached and incorporated by reference. 
 

Section 3.  The fees shall be effective June 1, 2013. 
 

Section 4. Resolution No. 5118-12 is rescinded effective June 1, 2013. 
 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of May, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
BY                                                     

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY                                                      

City Recorder 
 

Resolution No. 5141-13 - Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF TUALATIN FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
Administration Department: 
Agenda Packet  ................................................................ same as photocopy rate 
Ordinances or Portions Thereof ....................................... same as photocopy rate 
Photocopies: 
 Per page/side (up to 8.5”x14”) ............................................................... 0.25 
 Per page/side (11”x17”) ......................................................................... 0.50 
 Color - per page/side (up to 8.5”x14”) .................................................... 1.00 
 Color - per page/side (11”x17”) .............................................................. 1.50 
Certified Copies – per document………………………………………………..... 5.00 
Thumb Drive (2 GB) ....................................................................................... 10.00 
CD/DVD ......................................................................................................... 20.00 
Storage Retrieval Fee .................................................................................... 25.00 
Staff Time: 
 -Up to 30 minutes ......................................................................... no charge 
 -Over 30 minutes .................................................................. employee cost 
 
Community Development Department - Planning: 
Amendment to Comprehensive Plan Map ................................................. 2,090.00 
Amendment to Comprehensive Plan Text/Landmark 
 Designation/Removal of Landmark Designation ............................. 2,090.00 
Annexation ................................................................................................ 1,425.00 
Appeal Proceeding to Council ...................................................................... 135.00 
Appeal Expedited Process to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 ............... 300.00 
Architectural Review Application, Nonexpedited Process: 
 Estimated Project Value: 
 Under $5,000 ..................................................................................... 115.00 
 $5,000 - $24,999.99 .......................................................................... 550.00 
 $25,000 - $99,999.99 ........................................................................ 990.00 
 $100,000 - 499,999.99 ................................................................... 1,645.00 
 $500,000 and greater ..................................................................... 2,410.00 
Architectural Review Application, Expedited Process: 
 Estimated Project Value: 
 Under $5,000 ..................................................................................... 115.00 
 $5,000 - $24,999.99 ....................................................................... 1,100.00 
 $25,000 - $99,999.99 ..................................................................... 2,185.00 
 $100,000 - 499,999.99 ................................................................... 3,290.00 
 $500,000 and greater ..................................................................... 5,040.00 
Architectural Review, Minor ............................................................................ 75.00 
Architectural Review, Single-family Level I (Clear & Objective) ..................... 55.00 
Architectural Review, Single-family Level II (Discretionary) ......................... 730.00 
Conditional Use Permit .............................................................................. 1,425.00 
Conditional Use Permit Renewal ............................................................... 1,425.00 
Core Area Parking District Tax Appeal ......................................................... 135.00 
Extension Request Reviewed by Staff………………………………………….200.00 
Extension Request Reviewed by Architectural Review Board…………….1,150.00 
Interpretation of Development Code............................................................ No Fee 
Industrial Master Plans  ............................................................................. 1,820.00 
Landmark Alteration/New Construction Review ............................................. 60.00 

  Exhibit A 



Landmark Demolition Review ......................................................................... 60.00 
Landmark Relocation Review ......................................................................... 60.00 
Pre-Application Meeting ............................................................................... 205.00 
Reinstatement of Nonconforming Use ....................................................... 1,425.00 
Request for Council Rehearing .................................................................... 165.00 
Sign Code Interpretation .............................................................................. 410.00 
Sign Ordinance ................................................................................................ 8.00 
Sign Code Variance ..................................................................................... 675.00 
Sign Permit: 
 New Sign or Structural Change to Existing Sign ................................ 135.00 
 Temporary Sign or Each Face Change to Existing Sign ...................... 70.00 
Temporary Uses, 1 - 3 days ........................................................................... 50.00 
 4 - 180 days ..................................................................... $50.00 + 1.50/day 
 Over 3 days ............................................... not to exceed a total of $200.00 
Transitional Use Permit ............................................................................. 1,530.00 
Tree Removal Permit, 1 tree ........................................................................ 290.00 
 each additional tree, $10.00 not to exceed a total of ......................... 315.00 
Variance: 
   When primary use is a single family dwelling in RL or RML .............. 285.00 
 When primary use is not a single family dwelling in RL or RML....... 1,425.00 
Variance, Minor: 
 When primary use is a single family dwelling in RL or RML .............. 285.00 
 When primary use is not a single family dwelling in RL or RML ..... 1,050.00 
All Other Actions .......................................................................................... 325.00 
 
Community Development Department - Engineering & Building: 
Engineering Copies: 
 1987 and earlier, aerial/contour maps ................................................... 8.00 
 36” x 48” ................................................................................................ 5.00 
 24” x 36” ................................................................................................ 4.00 
 18” x 24” and 11” x 17” .......................................................................... 3.00 
Geographic Information System: 
 Citywide aerial photo, 36” x 42” ........................................................... 30.00 
 Subdivision street map, 34” x 36” ........................................................ 15.00 
 Street map, 22” x 22” ............................................................................. 8.00 
 Planning Districts, 34” x 44” ................................................................. 15.00 
 Planning Districts, 18” x 24” ................................................................... 8.00 
 Custom Mapping .................................................... 55.00/hr, plus materials 
Partition,* Nonexpedited & Expedited Processes ......................................... 410.00 
Partition,* Nonexpedited & Expedited Exten. /Modif.  .................................. 135.00 
Partition,* Nonexpedited, Appeal Proceeding to Council.............................. 135.00 
Partition,* Expedited, Appeal to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 ........... 300.00 
Partition,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ............................................................... Add 135.00 
Partition,* Minor Variance included & primary use is not a single  
 family dwelling & not in RL or RML ............................................ Add 205.00 
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* primary use is a single family dwelling  
 in RL or RML ....................................................................................... 70.00 
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a  
 single family dwelling in RL or RML ........................................... Add 135.00 



Property Line Adjustm’t.,* primary use is not a single family dwelling  
 in RL or RML ..................................................................................... 300.00 
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* Minor Variance included & primary use is  
 not a single family dwelling in RL or RML .................................. Add 135.00 
Property Line Adjustm’t.* Appeal Proceeding to Council .............................. 135.00 
Public Works Construction Code .................................................................... 50.00 
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited and Expedited Processes ............................. 2,700.00 
 
Subdivision,* Variance included & primary use is a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ............................................................... Add 270.00 
Subdivision,* Variance included & primary use is not a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ............................................................... Add 340.00 
 
Subdivision,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a single  
 family dwelling in RL or RML ..................................................... Add 135.00 
Subdivision,* Minor Variance included & primary use is not a single  
 family dwelling in RL or RML ..................................................... Add 205.00 
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited, Extension/Modif. by Council ........................... 620.00 
Subdivision,* Expedited, Extension/Modif. by City Engineer ........................ 155.00 
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited, Appeal Proceeding to Council ........................ 135.00 
Subdivision,* Expedited Appeal to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 ....... 300.00 
Street Name Change  ................................................................................... 135.00 
Street Vacation Application Deposit ............................................................. 340.00 
Zone of Benefit Application Fee ................................................................... 675.00 
 
* Subdivision, Partition and Property Line Adjustment applicants shall contact 

the Finance Department for a determination of L.I.D. assessment 
apportionment for the property proposed to be divided or adjusted. 

 
Finance Department: 
*L.I.D. Assessment Apportionment Fee ....................................................... 108.75 
Lien Search Fee (per tax lot) .......................................................................... 29.85 
Recovery Charge Installment Payment Plan Application Fee ...................... 228.20 
Returned Checks (per check for processing NSF check) ............................... 36.25 
Zone of Benefit Recovery Charge Administration Fee ................................. 120.50 
Passport Photo ............................................................................................... 16.00 
 
Legal Services Department: 
Development Code......................................................................................... 60.00 
 Updates ....................................................................... 0.25/page + postage 
Tualatin Municipal Code ................................................................................. 55.00 
Thumb Drive Containing Municipal Code & Development Code…10.00 + postage 
 
Municipal Court 
Traffic School and Compliance Program Fees: 
 Class A .............................................................................................. 275.00 
 Class B .............................................................................................. 155.00 
 Class C .............................................................................................. 125.00 
 Class D .............................................................................................. 100.00 
Seat Belt Class ............................................................................................... 65.00 



Vehicle Compliance Program ......................................................................... 35.00 
Collection Fee ................................................................... 25% of ordered amount 
License Restatement Fee .............................................................................. 70.00 
Overdue Payment Letter Fee ......................................................................... 10.00 
Failure to Appear – Arraignments .................................................................. 40.00 
Failure to Appear – Trials ............................................................................. 100.00 
 
Operations Department: 
Street Tree and Installation (Single Family Only) ......................................... 175.00 
Street Tree Removal (excluding Stump Grinding) ........................................ 300.00 
Street Tree Stump Grinding ......................................................................... 125.00 
Tree-for-a-Fee Program ................................................................................. 45.00 
New Tree Grates – Full set of 2 halves ........................................................ 400.00 
New Tree Grates – Half set .......................................................................... 200.00 
Tree Grates – Leveling Stone and fastening hardware .................................. 25.00 
Tree Grates Improvements .......................................................................... 175.00 
 
Police Department: 
Copies of Audio Tapes ............................................................. 14.00 including CD 
Copies of Video Tapes ............................................................. 14.00 including CD 
Copies of Photographs on CD .................................................. 15.00 including CD 
Copies of Police Reports (no charge to victims): 
 1 - 10 pages......................................................................................... 10.00 
 plus each page over 10 ......................................................................... 0.25 
Alarm Permit, Initial Application ...................................................................... 23.00 
Alarm Permit, Annual Renewal ...................................................................... 23.00 
Alarm Permit, 1st False Alarm ................................................................ No charge 
Alarm Permit, 2nd False Alarm .............................................................. No charge 
Alarm Permit, 3rd False Alarm ....................................................................... 85.00 
Alarm Permit, 4th False Alarm ..................................................................... 113.00 
Alarm Permit, 5th False Alarm ..................................................................... 169.00 
Alarm Permit, 6th and More False Alarms .....................................225.00 per alarm 
Alarm Permit, 10 or more False Alarms ............................... 500.00 Civil Infraction 
Release of Towed (impounded) Vehicles ..................................................... 100.00 



CITY OF TUALATIN FEE SCHEDULE WITH INCREASES 
 
Administration Department:             Increase 
Agenda Packet  ................................................................. same as photocopy rate varies  
Ordinances or Portions Thereof ........................................ same as photocopy rate varies 
Photocopies: 
 Per page/side (up to 8.5”x14”) ............................................................... 0.25 none 
 Per page/side (11”x17”) ......................................................................... 0.50 none 
 Color – per page/side (up to 8.5”x14”) ................................................... 1.00 none 
 Color – per page/side (11”x17”) ............................................................ 1.50 .50 per page 
Certified Copies – per document ...................................................................... 5.00 new 
Thumb Drive (2GB) ........................................................................................ 10.00 new 
CD/DVD ......................................................................................................... 20.00 new 
Storage Retrieval Fee .................................................................................... 25.00 new 
Staff Time: 
 -Up to 30 minutes ......................................................................... no charge new 
 -Over 30 minutes ................................................................... employee cost new 
 
Community Development Department:               
Amendment to Comprehensive Plan Map ................................................ 2,090.00  
Comprehensive Plan Text/Landmark 
 Designation/Removal of Landmark Designation ............................ 2,090.00   
Annexation ................................................................................................ 1,425.00   
Appeal Proceeding to Council ...................................................................... 135.00     
Appeal Expedited Process to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 .............. 300.00    
Architectural Review Application, Non-expedited Process: 
 Estimated Project Value: 
 Under $5,000 .................................................................................... 115.00      
 $5,000 - $24,999.99 .......................................................................... 550.00    
 $25,000 - $99,999.99 ........................................................................ 990.00   
 $100,000 - 499,999.99 ................................................................... 1,645.00    
 $500,000 and greater ..................................................................... 2,410.00   
Architectural Review Application, Expedited Process: 
 Estimated Project Value: 
 Under $5,000 .................................................................................... 115.00      
 $5,000 - $24,999.99 ....................................................................... 1,100.00    
 $25,000 - $99,999.99 ..................................................................... 2,185.00    
 $100,000 - 499,999.99 ................................................................... 3,290.00  
 $500,000 and greater ..................................................................... 5,040.00  
Architectural Review, Minor ........................................................................... 75.00     
Architectural Review, Single-family Level I (Clear & Objective) ..................... 55.00      
Architectural Review, Single-family Level II (Discretionary) ......................... 730.00    
Conditional Use Permit ............................................................................. 1,425.00    
Conditional Use Permit Renewal .............................................................. 1,425.00    
Core Area Parking District Tax Appeal ........................................................ 135.00      
Extension Request Reviewed by Staff………………………………………….200.00    
Extension Request Reviewed by Architectural Review Board…………….1,150.00   
Interpretation of Development Code ........................................................... No Fee     
Industrial Master Plans  ............................................................................ 1,820.00    
Landmark Alteration/New Construction Review ............................................. 60.00        
Landmark Demolition Review ........................................................................ 60.00   
Attachment B 
Page 1 of 4 

 



Landmark Relocation Review ........................................................................ 60.00      
Pre-Application Meeting ............................................................................... 205.00    
Reinstatement of Nonconforming Use ...................................................... 1,425.00    
Request for Council Rehearing .................................................................... 165.00      
Sign Code Interpretation .............................................................................. 410.00    
Sign Ordinance ................................................................................................ 8.00      
Sign Code Variance ..................................................................................... 675.00    
Sign Permit: 
 New Sign or Structural Change to Existing Sign ............................... 135.00      
 Temporary Sign or Each Face Change to Existing Sign ..................... 70.00      
Temporary Uses, 1 - 3 days ........................................................................... 50.00      
 4 - 180 days .................................................................... $50.00 + 1.50/day      
 Over 3 days ................................................ not to exceed a total of $200.00    
Transitional Use Permit ............................................................................. 1,530.00    
Tree Removal Permit, 1 tree ........................................................................ 290.00    
 each additional tree, $10.00 not to exceed a total of ......................... 315.00    
Variance: 
   When primary use is a single family dwelling in RL or RML .............. 285.00    
 When primary use is not a single family dwelling in RL or RML ...... 1,425.00    
Variance, Minor: 
 When primary use is a single family dwelling in RL or RML .............. 285.00    
 When primary use is not a single family dwelling in RL or RML ..... 1,050.00    
All Other Actions .......................................................................................... 325.00    
 
Engineering & Building Department: 
Engineering Copies: 
 1987 and earlier, aerial/contour maps ................................................... 8.00      
 36” x 48” ................................................................................................ 5.00      
 24” x 36” ................................................................................................ 4.00      
 18” x 24” and 11” x 17” .......................................................................... 3.00      
Geographic Information System: 
 Citywide aerial photo, 36” x 42” ........................................................... 30.00  
 Subdivision street map, 34” x 36” ........................................................ 15.00  
 Street map, 22” x 22” ............................................................................. 8.00      
 Planning Districts, 34” x 44” ................................................................ 15.00    
 Planning Districts, 18” x 24” .................................................................. 8.00  
 Custom Mapping ..................................................... 55.00/hr, plus materials      
Partition,* Nonexpedited & Expedited Processes ........................................ 410.00    
Partition,* Nonexpedited & Expedited Exten. /Modif.  .................................. 135.00  
Partition,* Nonexpedited, Appeal Proceeding to Council ............................. 135.00  
Partition,* Expedited, Appeal to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 ........... 300.00  
Partition,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ................................................................Add 135.00  
Partition,* Minor Variance included & primary use is not a single  
 family dwelling & not in RL or RML.............................................Add 205.00    
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* primary use is a single family dwelling  
 in RL or RML ....................................................................................... 70.00      
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a  
 single family dwelling in RL or RML............................................Add 135.00  
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* primary use is not a single family dwelling  



 in RL or RML ..................................................................................... 300.00    
Property Line Adjustm’t.,* Minor Variance included & primary use is  
 not a single family dwelling in RL or RML ...................................Add 135.00      
Property Line Adjustm’t.* Appeal Proceeding to Council ............................. 135.00      
Public Works Construction Code ................................................................... 50.00     
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited and Expedited Processes ............................. 2,700.00  
 
Subdivision,* Variance included & primary use is a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ................................................................Add 270.00    
Subdivision,* Variance included & primary use is not a single family  
 dwelling in RL or RML ................................................................Add 340.00    
 
Subdivision,* Minor Variance included & primary use is a single  
 family dwelling in RL or RML ......................................................Add 135.00      
Subdivision,* Minor Variance included & primary use is not a single  
 family dwelling in RL or RML ......................................................Add 205.00    
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited, Extension/Modif. by Council ........................... 620.00    
Subdivision,* Expedited, Extension/Modif. by City Engineer ........................ 155.00    
Subdivision,* Nonexpedited, Appeal Proceeding to Council ........................ 135.00      
Subdivision,* Expedited Appeal to Referee, Deposit per ORS 197.375 ....... 300.00     
Street Name Change  .................................................................................. 135.00  
Street Vacation Application Deposit ............................................................. 340.00    
Zone of Benefit Application Fee ................................................................... 675.00    
 
* Subdivision, Partition and Property Line Adjustment applicants shall contact the Finance 

Department for a determination of L.I.D. assessment apportionment for the property 
proposed to be divided or adjusted. 

 
Finance Department: 
*L.I.D. Assessment Apportionment Fee ....................................................... 108.75   6.75 
Lien Search Fee (per tax lot) .......................................................................... 29.85   1.85 
Recovery Charge Installment Payment Plan Application Fee ...................... 228.20 14.20 
Returned Checks (per check for processing NSF check) .............................. 36.25   2.25 
Zone of Benefit Recovery Charge Administration Fee ................................. 120.50   7.50 
Passport Photo .............................................................................................. 16.00  none 
 
Legal Services Department: 
Development Code ........................................................................................ 60.00 
 Updates ....................................................................... 0.25/page + postage 
Tualatin Municipal Code ................................................................................ 55.00 
Thumb Drive Containing Municipal Code & Development Code…10.00 + postage 
 
Municipal Court 
Traffic School and Compliance Program Fees: 
 Class A .............................................................................................. 275.00 25.00  
 Class B .............................................................................................. 155.00   5.00 
 Class C .............................................................................................. 125.00  none 
 Class D .............................................................................................. 100.00  none 
Seat Belt Class .............................................................................................. 65.00 10.00 
Vehicle Compliance Program ......................................................................... 35.00 10.00 



Collection Fee ................................................................... 25% of ordered amount  none 
License Restatement Fee .............................................................................. 70.00  none 
Overdue Payment Letter Fee ......................................................................... 10.00  none 
Failure to Appear – Arraignments .................................................................. 40.00 20.00 
Failure to Appear – Trials ............................................................................. 100.00  none 
 
Operations Department: 
Street Tree and Installation (Single Family Only) ......................................... 175.00     
Street Tree Removal (excluding Stump Grinding) ........................................ 300.00    
Street Tree Stump Grinding ......................................................................... 125.00    
Tree-for-a-Fee Program ................................................................................. 45.00     
New Tree Grates – Full set of 2 halves ........................................................ 400.00      
New Tree Grates – Half set.......................................................................... 200.00      
Tree Grates – Leveling Stone and fastening hardware .................................. 25.00      
Tree Grates Improvements .......................................................................... 175.00      
 
Police Department: 
Copies of Audio Tapes on CD ................................................ 14.00 (including CD) $2.00  
Copies of Video Tapes on CD ................................................ 14.00 (including CD) ($22.00) 
Copies of Photographs on CD ............................................... 15.00 (including CD) varies 
Copies of Police Reports (no charge to victims): 
 1 - 10 pages ........................................................................................ 10.00  3.00 
 plus each page over 10 ......................................................................... 0.25 none 
Alarm Permit, Initial Application ..................................................................... 23.00 none 
Alarm Permit, Annual Renewal ...................................................................... 23.00 none 
Alarm Permit, 1st False Alarm ............................................................... No charge none 
Alarm Permit, 2nd False Alarm .............................................................. No charge none 
Alarm Permit, 3rd False Alarm ....................................................................... 85.00 none 
Alarm Permit, 4th False Alarm ..................................................................... 113.00 none 
Alarm Permit, 5th False Alarm ..................................................................... 169.00 none 
Alarm Permit, 6th and More False Alarms .................................... 225.00 per alarm none 
Alarm Permit, 10 or more False Alarms ............................... 500.00 Civil Infraction  new 
Release of Towed (impounded) Vehicles .................................................... 100.00 none 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder
Sara Singer, Deputy City Manager

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 5144-13 Adopting a Citywide Records Request
Policy and Rescinding Resoltion No. 4797-08.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
To adopt an updated policy addressing the procedure for records request of non-exempt
records and to be in compliance with Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.410-505.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adpot Resolution No. 5144-13 granting the City Manger the authority to adopt and maintain the
City of Tualatin's public records policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.410-505 requires the custodian of public records to
adopt procedures for complying with the statutes. Tualatin's procedures were adopted by
resolution in 2008. The procedures need to be updated to comply with recent changes in the
law. The updated policy was modeled after the best practices for public records request
procedures, and it brings the City into compliance with all state regulations.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Costs accrued by city staff associated with records requests, will be reimbursed by the
requester per ORS 192.440. The City's fee schedule is set by resolution. 

Attachments: Attachment A- Records Request Policy
Attachment B- Public Records Request Form
Attachment C- Resolution No. 5144-13



City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 

I. Purpose 
The City of Tualatin recognizes that the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.410-192.505) gives 
members of the public the right to inspect and copy certain public records maintained by the City. 
The City also recognizes that certain records maintained by the City are exempt from public 
disclosure, or that disclosure may require balancing the right of the public to access the records 
against individual privacy rights, governmental interests, confidentially issues and attorney/client 
privilege. Additionally, when the city receives a request to inspect or copy public records, costs are 
incurred by the City in responding to the request. The purpose of this Public Records Policy is (a) to 
establish an orderly and consistent procedure for responding to public records requests; (b) to 
establish the basis for a fee schedule designed to reimburse the City for the actual costs incurred in 
responding to public records requests; and (c) to inform citizens of the procedures and guidelines 
that apply to public records requests. 

II. Policy 
It is the policy of the City to respond in an orderly, consistent and reasonable manner in accordance 
with the Oregon Public Records Law to requests to inspect or receive copies of public records 
maintained by the City. The City shall respond to all requests as soon as practical and without 
unreasonable delay within five (5) business days, or within five (5) business days will explain why 
more time is needed for a full response. 

III. Public Records 
Oregon Statutes define public records to include “any writing containing information relating to the 
conduct of the public business, including but not limited to court records, mortgages, and deed 
records, prepared, owned, used, or retained by a public body regardless of physical form or 
characteristics.” Oregon Statutes also provide that a record may be handwritten, typed, 
photocopied, printed, microfilmed, and exist in the electronic form such as e-mail or a word 
processing document, or other types of electronic recordings.  

Many public records requests are requests for information that would actually require the creation 
of a new public record. Public bodies are not obligated under Oregon’s Public Records Laws to 
create new public records where none exists in order to respond to requests for information. 
Although a public body may, if it chooses, create a new record to provide information, the public 
body does not have to create a new record and only has a duty to allow the inspection and copying 
of an existing public record. 

The City is obligated to provide public records in the format in which they exist. The City will provide 
records in alternative format at no cost, if necessary to provide reasonable accommodation to 
persons with disabilities. 

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 1  

 



IV. Public Records Exempt from Disclosure 
There are certain records that are exempt from disclosure. Other public records are conditionally 
exempt from disclosure. A determination based on any exemption will be made only after review 
and advice from the City Attorney.  

A few specific exemptions that apply to public records include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a) Personal Safety Exemption- ORS 192.445(1) 
b) Public Records Relating to Pending Litigation- ORS 192.501 (1) 
c) Personnel Discipline Actions- ORS 192.501 (12) 
d) Personnel Privacy Exemption- ORS 192.502(2) 
e) Public Employees Addresses, Dates of Birth and Telephone Numbers- ORS 192.502(3) 
f) Confidential Information Submitted by Citizens- OR 192.502(4) 
g) Records Deemed Confidential or Privileged under Federal and State Laws or Regulation- ORS 

192.502(8) & (9) 
h) Social Security Numbers 

V. Copyrighted Material 
If the City maintains public records containing copyrighted material, the City will permit the person 
making the request to inspect the copyrighted material, and may allow limited copying of such 
material if allowed under Federal copyright law. The City may require written consent from the 
copyright holder or an opinion from the person’s legal counsel before allowing copying of such 
materials. 

VI. Fees 
The fee for responding to a public records request will be established in the fee schedule adopted by 
the City. The fee will be reasonably calculated to reimburse the City for its actual costs in making the 
records available and may include: 

a) Charges for the time spent by City staff or any City contractor to locate the requested public 
records, to review the records in order to determine whether any requested records are 
exempt from disclosure, to segregate exempt records, to supervise the requestor’s 
inspection of original documents, to copy records, to certify records as true copies and to 
send records by special or overnight methods such as express mail or overnight delivery. 

b) A per page charge for photocopies of requested records. 
c) A per item charge for providing CDs, audiotapes, or other electronic copies of requested 

records.  

The City will prepare an estimate of the charges that will be incurred to respond to a public records 
request. If the estimated cost is $25 or more, the City will require the requestor to deposit the full 
amount of the estimated amount before fulfilling the request. If the actual costs incurred by the City 
to respond to the request are more than the amount deposited, the City may charge the requestor 
for all additional costs, and may require an additional amount be deposited before any additional 

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 2  

 



work on fulfilling the request proceeds. If the actual costs incurred by the City to respond to a 
records request are less than the amount of any required prepayment, the overpayment will be 
promptly refunded. If the cost to fulfill the request is estimated to be less than $25, the City will 
fulfill the request and present the requestor with an invoice to be paid before the release of the 
documents. 

Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the City may, at the City’s discretion, with the permission of the 
City Manager, furnish copies of requested records without charge or at a reduced fee if the City 
determines that the waiver or reduction of fees is in the public interest. 

VII. Procedure 
1. All public records requests must be made in writing (by mail, in person delivery, fax, or 

electronic transmission). Persons are encouraged to use the standard Public Records 
Request Form provided by the City, although other forms of written requests will be 
accepted if all the information required on the standard form is provided. 

2. Requests shall be submitted directly to the Deputy City Recorder by the person making the 
request. Requests can be submitted through the City’s website (www.tualatinoregon.gov) or 
can be made in person, by mail, by facsimile or via electronic mail, and shall be directed to: 
The City Manager’s Office, Attn: Deputy City Recorder, 18880 SW Martinazzi Ave, Tualatin, 
OR 97062. 503.691.3011 (phone); 503.692.5421 (fax). 

3. The City shall respond to all requests as soon as practical and without unreasonable delay 
within five (5) business days or within five (5) business days will explain why more time is 
needed for a full response. 

4. The City will provide to the requestor an estimate of the costs incurred by the City to 
provide the requested documents, including copying charges, research time (if required), 
and redaction of materials. There is no research cost for the first ½ hour of staff time. Upon 
receipt of the cost estimate, the requestor must confirm to the City in writing that the 
requestor wishes for the City to proceed with the request. 

5. If the estimated cost is $25 or more, the City will require a deposit in the full amount of the 
estimate before fulfilling the request. If the actual costs incurred by the City to respond to 
the request are more than the amount deposited, the City may charge the requestor for all 
such additional costs, and may require an additional amount be deposited before any 
additional work on fulfilling the request proceeds. If the actual cost exceeds the estimate, 
the City will not release the documents until the fee is received in full. If the cost estimated 
is less than $25, the City will fulfill the request and present the requestor with an invoice to 
be paid before release of documents. 

6. Upon receipt of payment the City will contact the requestor and arrange for inspection of 
the original public records, or to pick up the copies, or to confirm the copies are to be 
mailed, and advise of the final cost which must be paid before inspection occurs or the 
copies are provided. 

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 3  

 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/


7. A place for one (1) person will be provided for reviewing files. One file at a time will be made 
available. If more than one person wants to review files at the same time, reservations must 
be made in advance for a conference room. A research fee will be charged to cover staff 
person’s time for remaining in the room with the files. 

8. If a public records request is denied, the City shall prepare a denial of the request, which 
shall be provided to the person making the request in writing as soon as is practicable. 

9. If a public records request is denied, the requestor may appeal the decision to the 
Washington County District Attorney. 

VIII. Departmental Duties and Policies 

 The City Manager/City Recorder by charter is the designated Records Custodian for all public 
records maintained by the City, regardless of which City Department maintains the record or 
where the record is located. In the City Recorder’s absence the Deputy City Recorder shall serve 
as the Custodian.  

The City Recorder shall establish a system to monitor each step of the process in responding to a 
request to inspect public records to insure that the person making the request has a response 
within a reasonable time frame, and shall maintain a copy of each request and corresponding 
records related to the City’s response, including notes of each contact with the person making 
the request.  

Subject to prior approval by the City Manager and the City Attorney, a Department Manager may 
establish a separate Departmental policy to allow verbal or written requests to be made directly 
to the Department for public records maintained by the Department that are routinely requested 
by members of the public in connection with the Department’s regular duties. 

The Department Manager shall appoint a Designated Records Manager, who shall be responsible 
for reviewing and responding to public records requests received from the Deputy City Recorder 
or made under a Department Policy for responding to routine requests. 

The Designated Records Manager shall conduct a review to determine what public records, if 
any, exist which are responsive to the request and if any records might be exempt from 
disclosure. The Department should not, without prior approval of the City Manager, compile 
information or create documents related to a public records request. 

Once it is determined whether any responsive public records exist, the Designated Records 
Manager should make an estimate of the expected costs in complying with the request and 
forward a copy of the estimate to the Deputy City Recorder within five business days of receipt of 
the materials from the Deputy City Recorder. If the estimate cannot be completed within five 
business days, the Deputy City Recorder should be advised of the estimated time to complete the 
review and estimate. No further work on the request will be undertaken until the Designated 
Records Manager has received notice from the Deputy City Recorder that the estimated costs 
have been deposited with the Deputy City Recorder. 

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 4  

 



When the Deputy City Recorder has given notice that the estimated costs have been paid, the 
Designated Records Manager should proceed to prepare the original public records for 
inspection, or have photocopies made of the records if copies have been requested. 

The Designated Records Manager shall keep a record of all time spent in responding to the 
request and any applicable costs. 

The original public records, or the photocopies, if applicable, should be forwarded to the Deputy 
City Recorder, along with a final report of costs incurred. 

Should the Designated Records Manager or Deputy City Recorder believe there are public records 
that are, or may be, exempt from public disclosure, the records shall be provided to the City 
Attorney for review and redaction before the records are released for inspection or copying. The 
City Attorney shall keep a record of all time spent in reviewing the request and provide that 
information to the Designated Records Manager for inclusion in the final report of costs incurred.    

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 5  

 



Fee Schedule 
Photocopies: per page/side (up to 8 1/2 by 14")  $                                                                        0.25  
  per page/side 11x17  $                                                                        0.50  
  Color copies:   
  per page/side (up to 8 1/2 by 14")  $                                                                        1.00  
  per page/side 11x17  $                                                                        1.50  
Certified Copies: per document  $                                                                        5.00  
Thumb Drive: (2MB)  $                                                                     10.00  
CD/DVD:    $                                                                     20.00  
Storage Retrieval 
Fee:    $                                                                     25.00  
Postage:    actual cost  
Staff Time: Up to 30 minutes  no charge  
  Over 30 minutes  employee cost  
Engineering 
Copies: 36"x48"  $                                                                        5.00  
  24"36"  $                                                                        4.00  
  18"x24" and 11"x17"  $                                                                        3.00  
Police Copies: Copies of Police Reports (no charge to victims)  $10.00 (1-10pgs)/ each page over 10 $.025  
  Copies of Audio Tapes  $                                                                     14.00  
  Copies of Video Tapes  $                                                                     14.00  
  Copies of Photographs  $                                                                     15.00  

 

City of Tualatin Public Records Policy 
Page | 6  

 



 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST FORM 
 City of Tualatin 

Return Form To: 
City Manager’s Office, Attn: Deputy City Recorder 
18880 SW Martinazzi Ave, Tualatin, OR  97062 
Phone: 503.691.3011 Fax:  503.692.5421 
Email: nmorris@ci.tualatin.or.us 
 

Notice:  ORS 192.440 describes public access to copies or inspection of public records; written response by the public 
body; and fees for records. City of Tualatin Public Record Requests Policy outlines the City’s procedures. Instructions for 
requesting public records and fees are listed on the back of this form.  Deposit and confirmation to proceed will be 
required for requests that exceed $25.    

Your signature below acknowledges that you have read, understand, and accept financial responsibility for the 
fees associated with this public records request.   

Signature:  ______________________________________   Date:  _____________________________ 
 

Requestor Information: 
_________________________________       
Name  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address  
____________________________________________________________________ 
City          State   Zip Code 
_____________________      _______________________________________ 
Daytime Phone Number   Email address 

How would you like to receive the requested documents? 
      Review at City offices         E-mail     Mail       Pick Up 

Document Information: 
Describe the information/records you are requesting.  Be specific enough for the City to determine the nature, 
content, and department where the records you are requesting may be located.  Provide specific dates 
whenever possible.  Use additional sheets of paper if necessary. 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

For Staff Use 

Date Received: ________________ 

RM Coordinator:   _____________ 
Dept:  _______________________ 

Date Notification Provided: __________ 
Notification Method:        Copy of Form 

  E-mail         Mail        Pick Up 

Date Completed: ___________ 

Staff: Send copy of request to 
Deputy City Recorder 

Mandatory Notification Statement per ORS 192.440 (2)(a-f) 
Dear Requestor, thank you for your public records request. Your request:   

(a) is attached/enclosed. 
(b) was unable to be completed because the City does not possess, or is not the custodian of, the records. 
(c) will require more time to process (estimated date) __________ and will require a deposit of  $_______. 
(d) will require more time to process. An estimate will be provided within a reasonable time. 
(e) has been forwarded to the  ______ Dept to determine if the record exists; you will be contacted shortly. 
(f) was unable to be completed because the records are exempt under state or federal law: ____________ 
Other: requires additional or more specific information: _________________________________________ 

 

 

 

  

 

Attachmennt B- Form

mailto:nmorris@ci.tualatin.or.us


Instructions for Requesting Public Records: 
1. All public records requests must be documented. Persons are encouraged to use the standard Public Records 

Request Form provided by the City, although other forms of written requests will be accepted if all the 
information required on the standard form is provided. 

2. Requests shall be submitted directly to the Deputy City Recorder by the person making the request. Requests 
can be submitted through the City’s website (www.tualatinoregon.gov) or can be made in person, by mail, by 
facsimile or via electronic mail, and shall be directed to: The City Manager’s Office, Attn: Deputy City Recorder, 
18880 SW Martinazzi Ave, Tualatin, OR 97062. 503.691.3011 (phone); 503.692.5421 (fax). 

3. The City shall respond to all requests as soon as practical and without unreasonable delay within five (5) 
business days or within five (5) business days will explain why more time is needed for a full response. 

4. The City will submit a cost estimate to the requestor to provide the requested documents, including copying 
charges, research time (if required), and redaction of materials. There is no research cost for the first ½ hour of 
staff time. Requestor must confirm to the City to proceed with the request following receipt of the cost estimate 
in writing. 

5. If the estimated cost is $25 or more, the City shall require a deposit in the full amount of the estimate before 
fulfilling the request. If the actual cost exceeds the estimate, the City will not release the documents until the 
fee is received in full. If the cost estimated is less than $25, the City will fulfill the request and present the 
requestor with an invoice to be paid before release of documents. 

6. Upon receipt of payment the City will contact the requestor and arrange for inspection of the original public 
records, or to pick up the copies, or to confirm the copies are to be mailed, and advise of the final cost which 
must be paid before inspection occurs or the copies are provided. 

7. A place for one (1) person will be provided for reviewing files. One file at a time will be made available. If more 
than one person wants to review files at the same time, reservations must be made in advance for a conference 
room. A research fee will be charged to cover staff person’s time for remaining in the room with the files. 

8. If a public records request is denied, the City shall prepare a denial of the request, which shall be provided to the 
person making the request in writing as soon as is practicable. 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Photocopies: per page/side (up to 8 1/2 by 14")  $                                                                        0.25  

 
per page/side 11x17  $                                                                        0.50  

 
Color copies: 

 

 
per page/side (up to 8 1/2 by 14")  $                                                                        1.00  

 
per page/side 11x17  $                                                                        1.50  

Certified Copies: per document  $                                                                        5.00  

Thumb Drive: (2MB)  $                                                                     10.00  

CD/DVD: 
 

 $                                                                     20.00  
Storage Retrieval 
Fee: 

 
 $                                                                     25.00  

Postage: 
 

 actual cost  

Staff Time: Up to 30 minutes  no charge  

 
Over 30 minutes  employee cost  

Engineering Copies: 36"x48"  $                                                                        5.00  

 
24"36"  $                                                                        4.00  

 
18"x24" and 11"x17"  $                                                                        3.00  

Police Copies: Copies of Police Reports (no charge to victims)  $10.00 (1-10pgs)/ each page over 10 $.025  

 
Copies of Audio Tapes  $                                                                     14.00  

 
Copies of Video Tapes  $                                                                     14.00  

 
Copies of Photographs  $                                                                     15.00  Attachmennt B- Form

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 5144-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION 5144-13 ADOPTING A CITYWIDE RECORDS 
REQUEST POLICY AND RESCINDING RESOLTION NO. 4797-08 

 
 WHEREAS, ORS 192.410-505 authorizes the custodian of public records to 
adopt procedures to ensure compliance with Oregon’s public records laws; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 4797-08 to establish the 
City-wide public records policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s public record policy needs to be updated; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Recorder is the designated records custodian for the City of 
Tualatin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to delegate authority to the City Recorder to 
adopt and maintain an updated public records policy; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 
OREGON, that: 
  

Section 1.  The City Recorder is hereby delegated the authority to adopt and 
maintain the City of Tualatin’s public records policy. 

 
Section 2.  Resolution No. 4797-08 is hereby rescinded. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution is effective upon adoption.  

 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of May, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

 CITY OF TUALATIN, Oregon 
 
 
By:__________________________ 

                         Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________     
City Recorder 
 

  
 

Resolution No. 5144-13 - Page 1 of 1 
 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of a New Liquor License Application for Grochan Cellars.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve a new liquor license application for Grochan Cellars. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council approve endorsement of the liquor license application for
Grochan Cellars. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Grochan Cellars has submitted a new liquor license application under the category of winery, which
allows production, manufacturing, storage, and exporting of wine and cider. They may import wine or
cider if owned by the licensee, as well as sell wine and cider to wholesale and retail licensees, and
individuals in Oregon for consumption on or off-site. The business is located at 19550 SW Cipole Road.
The application is in accordance with provisions of Ordinance No.680-85 which established a procedure
for review of liquor licenses by the Council. Ordinance No. 680-85 establishes procedures for liquor
license applicants. Applicants are required to fill out a City application form, from which a review by the
Police Department is conducted, according to standards and criteria established in Section 6 of the
ordinance. The Police Department has reviewed the new liquor license application and recommended
approval. According to the provisions of Section 5 of Ordinance No. 680-85 a member of the Council or
the public may request a public hearing on any of the liquor license requests. If such a public hearing
request is made, a hearing will be scheduled and held on the license. It is important that any request for
such a hearing include reasons for said hearing.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
A fee has been paid by the applicant.

Attachments: Attachment A - Vicinity Map
Attachment B- License Types
Attachment C- Application



Grochan Cellars - 19550 SW Cipole Rd

I

_̂

Grochan CellarsCipole Rd

Attachment A
 Vicinity Map



 

 

OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
LICENSE TYPES 

 
FULL ON-PREMISES SALES 

• Commercial Establishment 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location (this is the license that most “full-service” restaurants obtain). Sell malt beverages 
for off-site consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer. Food 
service required. Must purchase distilled liquor only from an Oregon liquor store, or from 
another Full On- Premises Sales licensee who has purchased the distilled liquor from an 
Oregon liquor store.  

• Caterer 
Allows the sale of distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider by the drink to individuals 
at off-site catered events. Food service required. 

• Passenger Carrier 
An airline, railroad, or tour boat may sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, 
and cider for consumption on the licensed premises. Food service required.  

• Other Public Location 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, where the predominant activity is not eating or drinking (for example an 
auditorium; music, dance, or performing arts facility; banquet or special event 
facility; lodging  fairground; sports stadium; art gallery; or a convention, exhibition, or 
community center). Food service required.  

• Private Club 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, but only for members and guests. Food service required.  

 
LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES 

Sell and serve malt beverages, wine, and cider for onsite consumption. Allows the sale of malt 
beverages in containers (kegs) for off-site consumption. Sell malt beverages for off-site 
consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer.  

 
OFF-PREMISES SALES 

Sell factory-sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, and cider at retail to individuals in 
Oregon for consumption off the licensed premises. Eligible to provide sample tastings of malt 
beverages, wine, and cider for consumption on the premises. Eligible to ship manufacturer-
sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, or cider directly to an Oregon resident. 
 

BREWERY PUBLIC HOUSE 
Make and sell malt beverages. Import malt beverages into and export from Oregon. Distribute 
malt beverages directly to retail and wholesale licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages made 
at the business to individuals for consumption on or off-site. 

 
WINERY 

Must principally produce wine or cider in Oregon. Manufacture, store, and export wine and 
cider. Import wine or cider If bottled, the brand of wine or cider must be owned by the licensee. 
Sell wine and cider to wholesale and retail licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages, wine, and 
cider to individuals in Oregon for consumption on or off-site. 









TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sean Brady

FROM: Sean Brady, City Attorney

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5138-13 to Grant a Conditional Use Permit
toTualatin Animal Clinic to Allow a Veterinary Clinic with Practice Limited to Small
Animals in the Central Commercial (CC) Planning District at 8700 SW Cherokee
Street (Tax Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot 01000) (CUP-13-02).

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consider Resolution No. 5138-13 to grant conditional use permit toTualatin Animal Clinic to
allow a veterinary clinic with practice limited to small animals in the Central Commercial (CC)
planning district at 8700 SW Cherokee Street (Tax Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot 01000) (CUP-13-02).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends adopting Resolution No. 5138-13 to grant a conditional use permit toTualatin
Animal Clinic to allow a veterinary clinic with practice limited to small animals in the Central
Commercial (CC) planning district at 8700 SW Cherokee Street (Tax Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot
01000) (CUP-13-02). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On May 13, 2013, Council held a quasi-judicial public hearing on CUP-13-02 to decide whether
to grant a conditional use permit to the Tualatin Animal Clinic to allow a veterinary clinic with
practice limited to small animal in the Central Commercial (CC) planning district at 8700 SW
Cherokee Street (Tax Map 2S1 23AA, Tax Lot 01000). At the conclusion of the public hearing,
the Council voted unanimously to approve the conditional use permit with conditions, adopted
the findings in the Staff Report, and directed staff to return with a resolution granting CUP-13-02
with conditions.

Attachments: Attachment A: CUP-13-02 Resolution



RESOLUTION NO. 5138-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
TUALATIN ANIMAL CLINIC TO ALLOW A VETERINARY CLINIC WITH 
PRACTICE LIMITED TO SMALL ANIMALS IN THE CENTRAL 
COMMERCIAL (CC) PLANNING DISTRICT AT 8700 SW CHEROKEE 
STREET (TAX MAP 2S1 23AA, TAX LOT 01000) (CUP 13-02). 

 
 WHEREAS, a quasi-judicial public hearing was held before the City Council of 
the City of Tualatin on May 13, 2013 upon the application of the Tualatin Animal Clinic; 
and   
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing was given as required by the Tualatin 
Development Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council heard and considered the testimony and evidence 
presented on behalf of the applicant, the City staff, and those appearing at the public 
hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the conclusion of the public hearing the Council vote resulted in 
unanimous approval of the application with conditions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that the applicant has provided sufficient evidence 
to demonstrate that all of the requirements of the Tualatin Development Code relative to 
a conditional use have been satisfied and that granting the conditional use permit is in 
the best interests of the residents and inhabitants of the City, the applicant, and the 
public generally. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 
OREGON, that: 
  

Section 1.  Findings.  The Council hereby adopts the following findings: 
 
A. The use is listed as a conditional use in the underlying planning district. The 

subject property, Tax Lot 2S1 23AA 01000, is within the Central Commercial 
(CC) Planning District. "Veterinary clinic with practice limited to small animals" 
is a conditional use within the CC Planning District pursuant to TDC 
53.050(10). 

 
B. The characteristics of the site are suitable for the proposed use, considering 

size, shape, location, topography, existence of improvements and natural 
features. The minimum lot size within the CC Planning District is 10,000 
square feet (s.f.), approximately 0.23 acres. The site is approximately 0.34 
acres and was developed with a single-family house, which has had tenant 
improvements for prior commercial use. There is also an outbuilding, a large 
shed, at the southeast corner of the site. The tax lot exceeds the minimum lot 
size requirement. The site is a rectangular lot with access from SW Cherokee 

Resolution No. 5138-13 - Page 1 of 5 



Street and frontage along both SW Cherokee Street and SW Tualatin Road. 
The proposed use is located within the CC Planning District with access from 
SW Cherokee Street. The site is within first Tualatin town plat, dating from 
1887. Tax Map 2S1 23AA shows the nearest named subdivision to the east, 
“Town of Tualatin”. The site is also located within the boundaries of the 
Tualatin Town Center and Central Urban Renewal District (CURD) Block 23. 
The developed site has negligible slope. The site generally slopes downward 
northwest to southeast. The topography would not interfere with the proposed 
use. The site was developed with a single-family house, which has had tenant 
improvements for prior commercial use. There is also an outbuilding, a large 
shed, at the southeast corner of the site. The applicant proposes a veterinary 
clinic with practice limited to small animals. SW Tualatin Road is to City 
standards, while SW Cherokee Street is improved below City standards, 
retaining rural character by having 20-ft wide pavement and no curbing, 
formally aligned street trees, or sidewalks. Connections to City sanitary sewer 
and water systems currently exist. There is no connection to the City 
stormwater system or on-site private stormwater treatment. 
The issues of public improvements and stormwater management could be 
resolved through Architectural Review (AR) and a Public Works Permit 
(PWP).There are three mature evergreen trees along the northerly portion of 
the east yard, north of an on-site shed, that are the chief natural features and 
would not necessarily be displaced by the proposed use. 

 
C. The proposed development is timely, considering the adequacy of 

transportation systems, public facilities and services existing or planned for 
the area affected by the use. SW Cherokee Street is a City of Tualatin facility 
and designated as a Local Street with a right-of-way width of 46 to 50 feet. 
Typical full construction of a Local Street would include: 32 feet of pavement 
and gutters which includes two 16-foot travel lanes 4-foot planter strips with 
trees, curbs, and streetlights 5-foot sidewalks. SW Cherokee Street’s existing 
right-of-way width is 30 feet. The cross-section is improved with 20 feet of 
pavement. The intersection with SW Tualatin Road includes: 20 feet of 
pavement An 8-foot sidewalk perpendicular to SW Cherokee Street on the 
north side A 6-foot curb tight sidewalk on the south side. Southern Pacific 
Railroad is adjacent on north side which removes requirements for a sidewalk 
and planter strip on the north side. This results in a cross-section with 37.5 
feet of right-of-way, therefore a future need for 7.5 feet of right of way from 
the south side. With future development, dedication and construction of SW 
Cherokee Street adjacent to this lot would include: 7.5 feet of dedication of 
right-of-way on the south side 32 feet of pavement and gutters which includes 
two 16-foot travel lanes A 0.5-foot curb on the north side A 4-foot planter strip 
with trees, curbs, and streetlights on the south side A 5-foot sidewalk on the 
south side. Public infrastructure changes will be determined in the future 
Architectural Review and will require a Public Works Permit. SW Tualatin 
Road is a City of Tualatin facility and designated as a Major Collector with a 
right-of-way width of 54 to 74 feet. Typical full construction of a Major 
Collector would include: 50 feet of pavement and gutters which includes two 
12-foot travel lanes, one 14-foot center turn lane or landscaped median, and 

Resolution No. 5138-13 - Page 2 of 5 



two 6-foot bike lanes 6-foot planter strips with trees, curbs, and streetlights 6-
foot sidewalks. SW Tualatin Road’s existing right-of-way width is 60 feet. The 
cross-section is improved with: Approximately 40 to 48 feet of pavement 
including two to three travel lanes and 6-foot bike lanes A curb-tight sidewalk 
on the east adjacent to this lot A planter strip on the west side. SW Tualatin 
Road was constructed through a City capital project. No additional 
improvements are expected. 
 

D. There are two existing accesses to SW Cherokee Street serving this 
commercial development building which used to be a house: Approximately 
five feet from the stop bar near SW Tualatin Road a 20-foot wide access to 
two parking spaces in front of a former residential garage Approximately 100 
feet from the stop bar near SW Tualatin Road and 10 feet from the east 
property line a 32-foot driveway serves an onsite parking lot. SW Tualatin 
Road is a Major Collector requiring the nearest access to be at least 150 feet 
from the stop bar at the intersection with SW Cherokee Street. Both accesses 
are less than 150 feet from the intersection. As determined in a future 
Architectural Review, the access nearest SW Tualatin Road may need to be 
removed. The access 100-feet from SW Tualatin Road is acceptably far from 
the intersection and close to the opposing property line. With future 
development the east access will be allowed to remain in this location, but 
may need to become right-in/right-out restricted. Public infrastructure changes 
will require a Public Works Permit. Traffic counts visiting the existing 1,300 
square foot building are less than a number of current allowed uses in this 
than the reasonable worst case traffic generation. As this is less than the 
reasonable worst case traffic generation used in the Transportation System 
Plan (TSP), intersection Level-Of-Service would not be increased beyond 
expectations of the TSP by allowing this conditional use in this planning 
district. Connections to City sanitary sewer and water systems currently exist. 
There is no connection to the City stormwater system or on-site private 
stormwater treatment. As determined in a future Architectural Review, 
modification to the existing or creating new impervious area may require 
stormwater treatment and detention for up to all remaining impervious area. 
Requirements will be based on code at the time of the proposing the change 
to impervious area. Conveyance calculations and the direction of connection 
to the public stormwater system will determine detention requirements. 
Required public stormwater will need to be treated in a public stormwater 
pond or swale in a public tract. Public stormwater lines exist near the 
intersection of SW 86th Avenue & SW Sweek Drive. If no connection to a 
public stormwater line is proposed, 100-year retention will be needed. Public 
infrastructure changes will require a Public Works Permit. Required on-site 
stormwater will need to be privately treated prior to directly entering the public 
stormwater system. All Clean Water Services treatment and detention 
facilities can be approved for on-site private treatment. Private treatment and 
detention will require a Water Quality Permit. With a future development, 
downstream sizing for all public utilities will need to be evaluated by the 
developer for the change from permitted uses to the proposed development. 
Any upsizing will be a requirement for the development. 

Resolution No. 5138-13 - Page 3 of 5 



E. The proposed use will not alter the character of the surrounding area in any 
manner that substantially limits, impairs, or precludes the use of surrounding 
properties for the primary uses listed in the underlying planning district. The 
subject property is in the RML Planning District. Surrounding land uses by 
and planning district include: CC SW Cherokee Street and east-west rail line; 
CC Partially paved yet otherwise undeveloped; CC East to west: multi-tenant 
commercial building with Ecowater Northwest and Northwest Core Balance; 
building with unknown occupant, possibly a house in continued use as a 
residence; and In Color Salon; and RH/HR SW Tualatin Road and three-story 
V-plan Tualatin Greens Condominium The proposed use is compatible with 
surrounding urban neighborhood uses including residences and small 
businesses. Because of this and based on the applicant’s submitted 
information and staff review, the proposed use would not alter the character 
of the surrounding area in any manner which substantially limits, impairs or 
precludes the surrounding properties for the primary uses listed in the 
underlying planning districts. 

 
F. The proposal is consistent with plan policies. The applicable Tualatin 

Community Plan policies and TDC regulations that apply to the proposed 
conditional use in the CC Planning District include TDC: Chapter 6 
“Commercial Planning Districts”, Section 6.030 Objectives; Chapter 32 
“Conditional Uses”, Section 32.030 Conditional Uses – Siting Criteria; and 
Chapter 53 “Central Commercial Planning District (CC)”, Section 53.010 
Purpose.TDC 6.030 states that “the following are general objectives used to 
guide the development of this Plan: (1) Encourage commercial development. 
… (3) Provide shopping opportunities for surrounding communities. (4) Locate 
and design commercial areas to minimize traffic congestion and maximize 
access.” The proposal would relocate an existing business, a veterinary clinic. 
Within the application materials, Section 1 of the narrative states in the last 
paragraph that about 20% of clinic customers are within walking distance (p. 
4). The presence of Tualatin Greens Condominium west across SW Tualatin 
Road, Twelve Fairway Lane Condominium north across SW Cherokee Street 
and the east-west rail line, and existing single-family houses east and south 
of the subject property lend credibility to the statement. The proposal would 
maintain a level of commercial activity – the clinic already exists and is 
presently located a block east at 8575 SW Tualatin Road – and continue to 
provide a business service for the surrounding neighborhood. The subject 
property has access from SW Cherokee Street, a local street, and customers 
who drive can arrive from SW Tualatin Road to the west or SW 86th Avenue 
to the east.TDC 53.010 states that “the purpose of this district is to provide 
areas of the City that are suitable for a full range of retail, professional and 
service uses of the kind usually found in downtown areas patronized by 
pedestrians. The district also provides areas suitable for civic, social and 
cultural functions serving the general community.” The proposal is for the 
relocation of a veterinary clinic, an existing service use. The subject property 
is located within the boundaries of the Tualatin Town Center and Central 
Urban Renewal District (CURD) Block 23 as TDC Map 9-3 illustrates in 
Attachment G. (Staff confirmed that TDC 53.035 Central Urban Renewal Area 

Resolution No. 5138-13 - Page 4 of 5 



- Prohibited Uses does not prohibit a veterinary clinic.) As described above, 
the narrative states that about 20% of clinic customers are within walking 
distance, and the proposal would maintain a level of commercial activity and 
continue to provide a business service for the surrounding neighborhood. The 
proposal satisfies those objectives and policies of the TDC that are applicable 
to the proposed use. The proposal is consistent with plan policies. 

 
G. The staff report dated, May 13, 2013 is incorporated by reference. 
 
H. Based on the application, testimony and evidence submitted, Tualatin Animal 

Clinic (CUP-13-02) meets the criteria of TDC 32.030. 
 

Section 2.  The Conditional Use Permit (CUP-13-02) for Tualatin Animal Clinic is 
approved with the following conditions: 
 

A. The applicant shall submit for Architectural Review (AR) prior to constructing 
off-street parking facilities. 
 

B. The applicant shall bring all off-street parking into conformance with the off-
street parking standards in Tualatin Development Code (TDC) 73 within 30 
months of the date of this Resolution. 
 

C. The applicant shall operate the use consistent with all application materials 
submitted to the City on March 28, 2013. 
 

D. The applicant shall comply with all applicable TDC policies and regulations. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution is effective upon adoption.  

 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of May, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

 CITY OF TUALATIN, Oregon 
 
 
By:__________________________ 

                         Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________     
City Recorder 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 5138-13 - Page 5 of 5 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Alice Rouyer

FROM: William Harper, Senior Planner
Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 5145-13 Directing the Architectural Review Board to
review and comment on the proposed Nyberg Rivers Master Plan MP-13-01

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The Council will consider adopting a resolution directing the Architectural Review Board (ARB)
to review and comment on the proposed Nyberg Rivers Master Plan to inform the Council
decision.

RECOMMENDATION:
The staff requests that Council consider adopting the attached resolution.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The seven-member Architectural Review Board (ARB)(Board) was established in the Tualatin
Development Code (TDC) 73.030. The ARB is responsible for reviewing and commenting on
applications which may be directed to it through the development process including requests for
review of planning staff decisions concerning architectural features and the architectural
features of larger commercial, industrial and multi-family developments [TDC 73.030(2)].  Also,
the City Council may "...direct the Board to review and comment on other matters that the
Council determines are or may be within the Board's areas of expertise."  As stated in TDC
73.031,

"The Board shall consist of seven regular members and three alternate members as
follows: one member of the City Council; one registered professional architect and one
alternate member who shall be a registered professional architect; one registered
professional landscape architect and one alternate member who shall be a registered
professional landscape architect; one registered professional engineer or registered
engineer in training and one alternate member who shall be a registered professional
engineer or registered engineer in training; and three lay members. Of the three lay
members, at least two shall reside in the City."

  
CenterCal has submitted an application for approval of a Master Plan within the Central Urban
Renewal District (CURD) for a proposed redevelopment of the former KMart site and its
associated properties. The Nyberg Rivers properties are in the CURD and the developer must



associated properties. The Nyberg Rivers properties are in the CURD and the developer must
receive approval by Council of a Master Plan before development can occur.  A Council public
hearing on MP-13-01 is scheduled for July 22, 2013. The Nyberg Rivers project development
process will include: 

Council consideration of the Master Plan;
 
Council consideration of an application for a Conditional Use Permit (retail use in
Commercial Office Planning District and Outdoor Sales).

If the Master Plan and Conditional Use Permit are approved, the next step for the development
is:

An Architectural Review of the Nyberg Rivers including a Public Faciliites Decision by the
City Engineering Manager and a Architectural Review Board Decision on the architectural
features of the proposed development.

On May 16, 2013, the Nyberg Rivers developer CenterCal requested that the project be
presented to the ARB for a "courtesy review"  to obtain the ARB members comments
(Attachment B). Recognizing the experience and knowledge that ARB members have, the ARB
review and comments would serve as a public forum for the proposed project and provide
the developer, the Council and the public with information from the community perspective early
in the development process. 

The precedence for an informal session of the ARB to review development design concepts
with the developer prior to submitting an Architectural Review application includes: 

Two sessions with the Marquis Assisted Living Facility developer, and;

One session with the Alexan/Bridgeport Apartments developer (both projects currently
under construction).
 

At the two design sessions, ARB members provided informal comments on preliminary site,
landscaping and building design that the developer could use in preparing their application
plans.
 
If the attached resolution is approved, staff will schedule a June 19 meeting of the ARB for an
informal review of the access, transportation, sewer, water storm drainage, internal circulation,
building location, building design and materials, parking, landscaping and pedestrian facilities
proposed in the Nyberg Rivers Master Plan application as related to the CURD Master Plan
requirements. The ARB meeting will be noticed and will be open to the public. The review will
not be a public hearing and the ARB will not provide a formal decision or recommendation. The
review, comments and other information from the meeting will be acknowledged at the time of
the Nyberg Rivers Master Plan public hearing in July and in the Architectural Review for the
Nyberg Rivers project in October.

 
By approving this resolution the Council directs the ARB to review and comment on the Nyberg
Rivers Master Plan concepts as presented by CenterCal. 
 

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of the Resolution 5145-13 would result in the following:



Approval of the Resolution 5145-13 would result in the following:

The Architectural Review Board will be directed to review and comment on the Nyberg
Rivers Master Plan project as to certain CURD requirements as requested by the
developer. An ARB meeting will be held on June 19 that will be open to the public. The
meeting will not be a public hearing.

1.

Not approving the Resolution would result in the following:

The request for an Architectural Review Board review and comment on the
proposed Nyberg Rivers Master Plan will be declined.

1.

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The alternatives to the staff recommendation are:

The Council approve the proposed Resolution with modifications to the directions to the
Architectural Review Board.
Deny the proposed Resolution and request from CenterCal for informal review and
comments from the Architectural Review Board.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The FY 2012/13 budget and application fees related to the Nyberg Rivers development account
for the cost of of Architectural Review Board meetings.

Attachments: Attachment A-Resolution for ARB Review of Master Plan
Attachment B - CenterCal Request for ARB Session



RESOLUTION NO. 5145-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
TO REVIEW AND COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED NYBERG RIVERS 
MASTER PLAN. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council created the Architectural Review Board under TDC 
73.030; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to TDC 73.030(2), City Council may refer certain matters to 
the Architectural Review Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, CenterCal Properties, LLC submitted an application for a master 

plan within the Central Urban Renewal District Plan Area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about May 17, 2013, CenterCal Properties, LLC made a 
written request to the City for the Architectural Review Board to conduct a courtesy 
review of the master plan;  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 
OREGON, that: 
  

Section 1.  The Architectural Review Board shall review and comment on the 
Nyberg Rivers Master Plan and as it relates to the criteria in the Central Urban Renewal 
District Plan at a public meeting of the Board to be scheduled on June 19, 2013. 

 
Section 2. The Architectural Review Board shall collect all comments and forward 

those to the City Council for the July 22, 2013 City Council meeting. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution is effective upon adoption.  

 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of May, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

 CITY OF TUALATIN, Oregon 
 
 
By:__________________________ 

                         Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________     
City Recorder 
 

 

Resolution No. 5145-13 - Page 1 of 1 



From: Hank Murphy [mailto:hmurphy@centercal.com] 
Sent: Friday, May 17, 2013 1:37 PM
To: Alice Rouyer; Will Harper
Subject: Courtesy Architectural Review for Nyberg Rivers

Alice,

This email is to formally request a Courtesy Review with the Architectural Review Board on

Wednesday June 19th, 2013 for our Nyberg Rivers project. Please confirm this date will be
acceptable.

Thanks. Hank. 

Harry C. Murphy
Development Consultant

CENTERCAL PROPERTIES, LLC|Creating Value for Retailers and Communities         

7455 SW Bridgeport Road, Suite 205
Tigard, Oregon  97224
Office 503.968.8940  | Fax 503.968.8047 | Cell 503-789-8065 
http://centercal.com/
hmurphy@centercal.com

Electronic Privacy Notice:  This email, and any attachments, contain information that is, or may be, covered by electronic
communications privacy laws and is also confidential and proprietary in nature.  If you are not the intended recipient,
please be advised that you are legally prohibited from retaining, using, copying, distributing, or otherwise disclosing this
information in any manner.  Instead, please reply to the sender that you have received this communication in error, and
then immediately delete it.  Thank you in advance for your cooperation.

Attachment B - Page 1

mailto:/O=CITY OF TUALATIN/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=WHARPER
mailto:GKIRBY@ci.tualatin.or.us
http://centercal.com/
mailto:jgordon@centercal.com


TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos

FROM: Cindy Hahn, Associate Planner
Sara Singer, Deputy City Manager

DATE: 05/28/2013

SUBJECT: Review and Discuss Input about Chickens in Single-Family Areas

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Tonight's meeting has two purposes:

Discuss input received from the Citizen Involvement Organizations, and individual
community members about chickens in single-family areas of Tualatin.

1.

Provide direction to staff on how to proceed.2.

RECOMMENDATION:
Review and discuss input received from the Citizen Involvement Organizations and individual
community members and provide direction to staff on how to proceed.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The City Council reconsidered the issue of allowing chickens in single-family areas of Tualatin
at the December 10, 2012 work session (see Attachment A). The suggestion was made that the
issue be vetted through the Citizen Involvement Organizations (CIOs) and that staff work with
the CIO presidents to determine a timeline for their input on the issue. Council further directed
staff to put the issue on a future agenda for further review.

An information packet was prepared and presented to the CIO officers at their January 31, 2013
CIO Officer Meeting (Attachment B). This packet contained a comment form for CIOs to use as
a guide in submitting the results of their neighborhood's  input for Council review.  In addition,
the packet contained background information about the issue.

CIO COMMENTS

Five (5) CIOs - Martinazzi Woods CIO, Riverpark CIO , East Tualatin CIO, Ibach CIO, and CIO
6 - submitted results of surveys they conducted of residents in their boundaries. These results
are included in Attachment C.

OTHER COMMENTS



OTHER COMMENTS

Seventy-one (71) individual residents provided comments about chickens in residential areas of
Tualatin. In addition, a petition with 14 signatures and accompanying emails, 11 petition sheets
with a total of 179 signatures, and another petition with 26 signatures were submitted. These
comments and petitions are included in Attachment D.

NEXT STEPS

If Council decides to move forward with consideration of an ordinance to allow chickens in
single-family residential areas of Tualatin, staff will return to the June 10 Council meeting with a
proposed timeline for this process.

Attachments: A. 12-10-12 Council Work Session Minutes
B. CIO Packet
C. CIO Comments
D. Individual Comments
E. Project Update Slide
F. Individual Comments recieved after 5/17/13



Attachment A - page 1



Attachment A - page 2



Attachment A - page 3



Attachment A - page 4



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
CITY OF TUALATIN 

TO:   Citizen Involvement Organization (CIO) 
 
THROUGH:  Sara Singer, Deputy City Manager  
 
CC:   Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager 
   Alice Rouyer, AICP, Community Development Director 
   Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, AICP, Planning Manager 
 
FROM:  Colin Cortes, AICP, CNU-A, Assistant Planner 
 
DATE:  January 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: CIO Comments Sought on Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Summary 
 
At the November 13, 2012 Tualatin City Council meeting, a request was made during the 
public comment period for the Council to reconsider the issue of allowing the keeping of 
chickens in residential areas.  Following its December 10, 2012 work session, the Council 
directed that citizen comment on keeping of chickens in residential areas be obtained 
through the Citizen Involvement Organization (CIO).   
 
The City will make available the attached comment form and background information for 
the CIO Officer Meeting on January 31, 2013.  Please contact Sara Singer, Deputy City 
Manager with questions. 
 
 
Attachments: 1. Comment Form 
 2. Tualatin City Council Memo “Keeping of Chickens in Residential  
  Areas” (October 25, 2010) with Attachments: 

A. Draft Code Language - Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 
B. City Regulations for Keeping of Poultry in Residential Areas  

[Partially Revised January 17, 2013] 
C. City of Portland - Chapter 13.05 Specified Animal Regulations 
D. Residential Urban Chicken Keeping: An Examination of 25 Cities 
E. Gresham Revised Code - Article 7.17 Keeping of Chickens 
F. Draft Amendments to Sections 40.020 and 40.030(4)(m) of the 

Tualatin Development Code to Allow the Keeping of Chickens  
in the Low Density Residential (RL) Planning District 

G. Comment Letter and Emails 

Attachment B - Page 1



1/16/2013 

Comment Form 

Issue: Chickens in Residential Areas 

Date: ________ 

CIO: ________ 

Number of Participants: ____ 

Majority Position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minority Position: 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Comments: 

Attachment B - Page 2



TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM:. 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 
CITY OF TUALATIN 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager~ 
Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Acting Pla~~9 _Manager'-.:f#f) 
Cindy Hahn, Assistant Planner u>1i) 

October 25, 2010 

KEEPING OF CHICKENS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL: 
On June 14, Council asked that the Tualatin Planning Advisory Committee (TPAC) 
discuss the issue of keeping chickens in residential areas. On July 6, 2010, staff 
presented information to TPAC for discussion and returned on August 3, 2010, with draft 
code language, specifically a new proposed Chapter 12-2 Keeping of Chickens in 
Residential Areas to the Tualatin Municipal Code (TMC), for review and discussion 
(Attachment A). A positive recommendation was received from TPAC, and staff is now 
presenting the draft code language to City Council for consideration. 

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
o Given the increasing interest in keeping chickens in residential areas, should the 

City amend the City Codes to allow this to occur? 
e If this is desirable, what new regulations should be adopted? 
$ If this is not desirable, should the City Codes be strengthened to prohibit the 

keeping of chickens in residential areas? 

BACKGROUND: 
Existing City regulations contained in the Tualatin Development Code (TDC) do not allow 
the keeping of chickens in single-family or other residential areas. Specifically, the Low 
DeniSity Residential (RL) Planning District allows as a permitted use "agricultural useiS of 
land, such as truck gardening, horticulture ... ", but excludes "the raising of animals other 
than normal household pets" (TDC Section 40.020). Further, the RL Planning District 
allows aiS a conditional use "agricultural animals" but limits' these to include "cattle, horses 
and iSheep" (TDC Section 40.030(4)(m)) to some limited areas of the city. Small animals 
are defined as "a domestic animal, such as a dog, cat, rabbit or guinea pig, accepted by 
the American Veterinary Medical Association as a household pet" (TDC Section 31.060 
Animal, Small), and thus does not include chickens. The TDC does not allow "agricultural 
uses" in any other Planning District. The TMC also has regulations on nuisance issues 

Attachment B - Page 3



MEMORANDUM: Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 
October 25,2010 
Page 2 of 3 

addressing odor and animals, however, these regulations do not specifically address the 
keeping of chickens. 

Chickens are included in the broader category of poultry, which includes domestic fowls 
such as chickens, turkeys, ducks, or geese, raised for meat or eggs. Cities in the Portland 
metropolitan area address the keeping of poultry in residential areas in a variety of ways. 
Staff gathered information about regulations in nine cities, which is summarized in 
Attachment B and was presented to TPAC at the July 6, 2010 meeting. 

At the July 6, 2010 meeting, TPAC asked staff to review the City of Portland's regulations 
and to determine whether a "model ordinance" exists for the keeping of chickens in 
residential areas. Staff subsequently reviewed the City of Portland's regulations 
(Attachment C) and incorporated some of the definitions and criteria in the regulations 
into the draft code language contained in proposed TMC Chapter 12-2 (Attachment A). 
Staff also located an analysis prepared by K.T. LaBadie, a student at the University of 
New Mexico, entitled Residential Urban Chicken Keeping: An Examination of 25 Cities, 
which includes an example or "model" ordinance for the keeping of chickens in residential 
areas (Attachment D). This paper, along with the City of Gresham's Chicken Code 
(Attachment E) provided the basis for the majority of definitions and standards in the draft 
code language contained in proposed TMC Chapter 12-2. 

At the August 3,2010 TPAC meeting, the committee discussed the draft code language 
and made several suggested changes. The overall consensus was that proposed TMC 
Chapter 12-2 should be adopted with the limitation that it pertain only to chickens and not 
other types of domesticated fowl, and necessary amendments made to Sections 40.020 
and 40.030(4)(m) of the TDC, to allow the keeping of chickens in single-family residential 
areas of the City. 

DISCUSSION: 
As directed by City Council, staff has presented information on the keeping of chickens in 
residential ar~as to TPAC for their consideration. TPAC has recommended that proposed 
TMC Chapter 12-2 should be adopted and necessary amendments be made to Sections 
40.020 and 40.030(4)(m) of the TDC, to allow the keeping of chickens in single-family 
residential areas of the City. The draft code language includes the following: 

• The single-family residential lot or parcel must have a minimum area of 5,000 
square feet to keep up to four (4) adult chickens (individual birds). 

• One additional adult bird is permitted for each 2,000 square feet of additional lot 
area up to a maximum lot area of 9,000 square feet or greater, or a maximum of 
six (6) adults birds. 

• No roosters are allowed. 
• Chickens are not allowed to be kept in any residential areas other than single

family, and the keeper must reside in the single-family dwelling on the lot or parcel 
where the chickens are kept. 

• No other farm animals or livestock, such as goats, sheep or small pigs, are 
addressed by the draft code language. 

• No permit is required and there are no fees. 
Attachment B - Page 4



MEMORANDUM: Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 
October 25, 2010 
Page 3 of 3 

• Enforcement is on a complaint basis, and complaints are subject to investigation 
by the City Code Enforcement Officer or designee. 

Sections 40.020 and 40.030(4)(m) of the TDC address small animals and household pets, 
but do not specifically address the keeping of poultry in residential areas. Minor 
amendments to these sections of the TDC, as shown in Attachment F, will be necessary 
concurrent with adoption of the new proposed Chapter 12-2 of the TMC. . 

Public Comment: Since the August 3,2010 TPAC meeting, the City has received four (4) 
public comments - three (3) emails and one (1) letter - regarding the keeping of chickens 
in residential areas: 

• The first, an email dated August 17 from Paul Sivley, strongly opposes the keeping 
of chickens. 

• The second and third, an email dated September 8 from Jennie Willis and a letter 
dated September 27 from Marianik Le Gal, support allowing chickens in residential 
areas. 

• The fourth, an email dated September 28 from Steve Titus, neither supports nor 
opposes the keeping of chickens, but references the $50 license fee adopted in 
Salem and states: "I hope we have some fee included ... to cover the cost of a 
basic 'Dos and Don'ts' of keeping chickens in the city". 

The comment letter and emails are included as Attachment G to this staff memorandum. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that Council consider the information presented and provide direction 
to staff. 

Attachment: A. Draft Code Language - Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 
B. City Regulations for Keeping of Poultry in Residential Areas 
C. City of Portland - Chapter 13.05 Specified Animal Regulations 
D. Residential Urban Chicken Keeping: An Examination of 25 Cities 
E. Gresham Revised Code - Article 7.17 Keeping of Chickens 
F. Draft Amendments to Sections 40.020 and 40.030(4)(m) of the 

Tualatin Development Code to Allow the Keeping of Chickens in the 
Low Density Residential (RL) Planning District 

G. Comment Letter and Emails 

Attachment B - Page 5



ATTACHMENT A: DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23, 2010 
Page 1 of4 

Tualatin Municipal Code 
Chapter 12-2 
Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas 

Sections: 
12-2-010 Purpose. 
12-2-020 Definitions. 
12·2-030 Applicability and Exceptions. 
12-2-040 Standards. 
12-2-050 Complaint Processes. 
12-2-055 Investigations and Notices. 
12·2-060 Fees. 
12·2-070 Effective Dates. 

12-2-010 Purpose. 
The purpose of this code is to provide minimum standards for the keeping of 

chicken{s) in single-family residential areas to safeguard the health, safety and 
welfare of the owners, occupants and users of single-family dwellings and 
premises; and to protect the health, safety and welfare of neighbors to these 
properties. 

12-2-020 Definitions. 
As used in this chapter, the following definitions apply: 
(1) "Chicken" means Gallus gallus or Gallus domesticus, a domestic fowl 

believed to be descended from the red jungle fowl of southeastern Asia and 
developed in a number of breeds for its flesh, eggs, and feathers. 

(2) "Code Enforcement Officer or Designee" means the person designated 
by the City Manager to enforce the provisions of this chapter. 

(3) "Coop" means a building or similar structure where chickens are kept, the 
interior of which usually has nest boxes for egg laying and perches for the birds 
to sleep on. 

(4) "Dwelling Unit" means a habitable structure containing one or more 
rooms designed for occupancy by one individual or family and not having more 
than one cooking facility. 

(5) "Keeper" means any person or legal entity who harbors, cares for, 
exercises control over or knowingly permits any chicken{s) to remain on 
premises occupied by that person for a period of time not less than 72 hours or 
someone who accepted the chicken{s) for purposes of safe keeping. 

(6) "Run" means an enclosed or fenced area in which poultry are kept and 
allowed to walk, run about, peck and otherwise move freely. 

(7) "Poultry" means domesticated fowl, limited to chickens raised for their 
flesh, eggs, and/or feathers, and excluding other fowl such as quail, pheasants, 
turkeys, or ducks .. 

(8) "Secure Enclosure" means an enclosure that both contains the 
chicken{s) and protects them from predators. When located outdoors and 

Attachment A 
Draft Code Language - Keeping of 

Chickens in Residential Areas 
Attachment B - Page 6



ATTACHMENT A: DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 2 of4 

separate from the single-family dwelling unit, the secure enclosure must include 
a covered, enclosed area (part not exposed to the elements), secure sides, a 
secure top attached to the sides, and a secure bottom or floor attached to the 
sides of the structure or the sides must be embedded in the ground. Alternatively, 
the secure enclosure may be any part of a house, garage, porch, or patio that 
must include a latched door or doors kept in good repair to prevent the accidental 
escape of chicken(s) or exit by chicken(s) of their own volition. 

(9) "Single-Family Dwelling" means a single dwelling unit detached or 
separate from other dwelling units. A dwelling unit not having common walls with 
another dwelling unit. 

(10)"Vermin" means various insects, bugs, or small animals, such as flies, 
cockroaches, mice, and rats, regarded as pests because they are annoying, 
obnoxious, destructive, or disease-carrying. 

12-2-030 Applicability and Exceptions. 
Chickens are allowed in single-family residential areas for personal use 

subject to the following conditions: 
(1) Up to four (4) adult chickens (individual birds) over four (4) months of age 

shall be permitted on anyone (1) single-family residential lot or parcel with a 
minimum area of 5,000 square feet. One (1) additional adult bird shall be 
permitted for each 2,000 square feet of additional lot area, up to a maximum of 
six (6) adult chickens (individual birds). For clarity, chickens four (4) months of 
age or younger shall not be counted toward this number. The keeper shall reside 
in a single-family dwelling on the lot or parcel where the chicken(s) are kept. 

(2) No roosters shall be permitted. 

12-2-040 Standards. 
A keeper of chicken(s) shall adhere to the following standards: 
(1) Chicken(s) shall be kept on the dwelling unit premises at all times. 
(2) Chicken(s) shall be kept in a secure enclosure between 10 PM and 7 AM. 

If the secure enclosure is a fully fenced pen, coop or similar structure, then it 
shall be located in the rear yard of the lot or parcel. 

(3) The secure enclosure shall have at least two (2) square feet of floor space 
per grown (adult) bird, shall be adequately lighted and ventilated, and shall be 
kept in a clean, dry, and sanitary condition at all times. 

(4) Any outdoor run shall be cleaned on a regular basis and as frequently as 
is necessary to prevent the accumUlation of poultry waste or droppings (feces, 
feather dander, dust, uneaten food, etc.). 

(5) The secure enclosure shall be located at least twenty (20) feet from any 
dwelling unit on an adjacent lot or parcel and at least ten (10) feet from all 
property lines. 

(6) The secure enclosure shall be kept in good repair, capable of being 
maintained in a clean and sanitary condition, and free of vermin, obnoxious 
smells and SUbstances. 

Attachment B - Page 7



ATTACHMENT A: DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 3 of4 

(7) The secure enclosure, any run and any chicken(s) shall not create a 
nuisance or unduly disturb neighboring residents due to noise, odor, damage or 
threats to public health. 

(8) All poultry feed shall be kept in metal garbage cans with secure lids or 
similar vermin-resistant containers or enclosures. 

12-2-050 Complaint Processes. 
(1) Any person may file complaints for suspected violation of the standards 

contained in this chapter. 
(2) A complaint must be in writing and may be filed in person, by mail, by 

email, or fax. The complaint shall contain at least the following information: 
(a) The name of the person filing the complaint. No complaints may be 

submitted anonymously; 
(b) The address of the alleged violation; and 
(c) A complete description of the alleged violation. 

(3) The Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall process complaints using 
the following procedure: 

(a) Confirm that the complaint alleges a violation of a standard of this 
chapter; 

(b) Confirm that the allegation in the complaint, if proven to be true, would 
be a violation of this chapter; and 

(c) Once the requirements of (a) and (b) are confirmed, notify the 
owner/keeper that the complaint has been submitted. 

12-2-055 Investigations and Notices. 
(1) Investigations. Upon confirmation that the requirements in TMC 12-2-050 

have been met, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee will conduct an 
investigation to confirm the validity of the complaint. 

(a) If the Code Enforcement Officer or designee determines that the 
complaint is not valid, the case will be closed and all parties will be notified of the 
closure. 

(b) If the Code Enforcement Officer or designee determines that the 
complaint is valid, the owner/keeper will be issued a notice of the violation and 
request that the required maintenance, repairs and/or modifications be 
completed by a date certain. 

(2) Inspection and Right of Entry. When it may be necessary to inspect to 
enforce the provisions of this chapter, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee 
may enter the single-family dwelling or premises at reasonable times to inspect 
or perform the duties imposed by this chapter as follows: 

(a) If the single-family dwelling or premises are occupied, the Code 
Enforcement Officer or designee shall present credentials to the occupant and 
request entry. 

(b) If the single-family dwelling or premises are unoccupied, the Code 
Enforcement Officer or designee shall first make a reasonable effort to locate the 

Attachment B - Page 8



ATTACHMENT A: DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 4 of4 

owner/keeper or other person having charge or control of the single-family 
dwelling or premises and request entry. 

(c) If entry is refused or the dwelling unit or premises are unoccupied, the 
Code Enforcement Officer or designee may follow the procedures to obtain an 
administrative (non-criminal) warrant to inspect the premises. 

(3) Failure to comply. If the owner/keeper does not comply with the notice by 
the specified date, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee will issue a citation 
to the ownerlkeeper to appear in Municipal Court. 

(4) Penalties. A person who is found guilty by the Municipal Court of violating 
a provision of this chapter shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $500.00 per 
day per violation. Each day that a violation exists constitutes a separate violation. 

(5) Appeals. The Municipal Court decision may be appealed to the Circuit 
Court. 

12-2-060 Fees. 
There shall be no fees for the keeping of chicken(s) that is in compliance with 

the standards of this chapter. 

12-2-070 Effective Dates. 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the ordinance is 

approved. 

Attachment B - Page 9



TABLE 1: CITY REGULATIONS FOR KEEPING OF POULTRY IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS 
 

Attachment B (10/25/2010; Partially Revised 1/17/2013) 
Table 1:  City Regulations for Keeping of Poultry in Residential Areas 

 
City 

Status of 
Regulation Type of Regulation Number Allowed Permit Enclosure Inspection 

Code 
Enforcement 

Lot Size 

Beaverton Planning 
Commission 
Public Hearing, 
06-30-10, to 
consider draft 
ordinance. City 
Council first 
hearing on 08-
09-10 

Urban Poultry 
Ordinance. 

Unspecified at this time. 
Chickens and ducks only. 
No roosters.  

Unknown Unknown Unknown Standard 
Process. 

Yes, min. lot 
size of 5,000 
sq ft, applying 
to both 
detached 
single-family 
houses and 
duplexes 

Forest 
Grove 

Adopted 07-13-
09; Effective 
08-13-09 

Ordinance 
Amending Forest 
Grove Development 
Code to Allow 
Domesticated Fowl 
(Ordinance No. 
2009-08) 
Allowed in 
Residential Zones: 
SR, R-10, R-7, R-5, 
RML, RMH and 
Commercial Zones: 
NC, CC as a Limited 
Use 

Domesticated fowl = 
chickens, quail, pheasants 
and ducks. Up to 4 adult 
fowl over 6 mos of age; lot 
with minimum area of 5,000 
sf. One additional adult fowl 
permitted for each 2,000 sf 
additional lot area, up to 
maximum of 12 fowl. No 
roosters. Must be in 
conjunction with single-
family residence and 
primarily for personal use. 

Not 
required. 

Fencing designed and 
constructed to confine 
all animals to owner’s 
property. All structures 
that house fowl located 
at least 20 ft from all 
residences except 
owner’s, 5 ft from any 
side or rear property 
line. 

Not required. 
Complaint 
based. 

Standard 
Process. 

Yes; min. lot 
size of 5,000 
sq ft with 4 
fowl allowed; 
for every 
2,000 sq ft an 
additional fowl 
is allowed 
(Article III, p. 
23.) 

Gresham Enacted 02-04-
10 

Gresham Chicken 
Code (GRC Article 
7.17) 

3 or fewer adult hens on any 
one lot or parcel; must have 
a single family dwelling on 
same lot or parcel. No 
roosters. Only chickens 
greater than 4 mos old count 
toward the total of 3. 

Required. 
Valid for 2 
yrs. $50. 

Birds must be in 
enclosed coop or run at 
all times; in covered, 
enclosed coop 10 PM to 
7 AM. Must be in rear 
yard of residence. Coop 
at least 25 ft from 
residences on a 
different lot or parcel, at 
least 10 ft from all 
property lines. Run at 
last 10 ft from all 
property lines. 

Authorized. 
Complaint 
based. 

Standard 
Process. 

No. 

Lake 
Oswego 

In place since 
1980s 

Chapter 31 Animals 
and Fowl, Article 
31.02, Lake Oswego 
City Code.  

Defines “Animal” = “Any 
mammal, bird or reptile.” and 
“Livestock” = “Bovine 
species, horses, mules, 
burrow, asses, sheep, goats, 
swine and domestic fowl.” 
Unlimited number allowed 
as long as they do not 
become an annoyance, 

Not 
required. 

Shelter must include a 
structure or other 
means of protection 
from the weather and 
injury. No other 
specifications. 

Not required. 
Complaint 
based. 

Standard 
Process. 

No. 

Attachment B - Page 10



 
City 

Status of 
Regulation Type of Regulation Number Allowed Permit Enclosure Inspection 

Code 
Enforcement 

Lot Size 

alarm or noise disturbance 
at any time of the day or 
night. 

Oregon 
City 

In place since 
1990s 

Title 8 – Health and 
Safety; Chapter 8.08 
Nuisances, Oregon 
City Code of 
Ordinances 

Unlimited number allowed 
as long as they do not 
become a nuisance and/or 
no complaints are received. 

Not 
required. 

Not required. Not required. 
Complaint 
based. 

Standard 
Process. 

No, not for 
chickens, yet 
allowance for 
one “hooved 
animal” per 
20,000 sq ft 

Salem Drafting 
Regulations in 
response to 
request by City 
Councilor. First 
presentation to 
City Council on 
06-28-10. Goal 
= Regulation in 
place by end of 
2010. 

Chicken Rules 
(Ordinance), 
currently in rough 
draft form 

Maximum 3 hens. No 
roosters. Applies to chickens 
only; no other fowl. 

Required. 
Valid for 1 
yr. $50 + 
$17.50 
processing 
fee. 

Hens must be contained 
in coop at all times and 
are not allowed to roam 
free. Coops located in 
side or rear yards of 
residential structures, at 
least 20 ft from any 
residential dwelling, min 
3 ft from property lines. 
Maximum coop size = 
120 sq ft. Electrical 
permit required if coop 
has power. 

Coop 
inspection 
prior to 
licensing; 
Inspection 
Certificate 
required. Re-
inspection on 
3rd yr of 
licensing. 

Standard 
process, with 
a few tweaks 
regarding 
remedies; 
based on 
experience, 
city would’ve 
allowed by 
right with 
standards 
instead of 
creating 
permit 
process. 

No. 

Sherwood In place since 
1980s 

Sherwood Municipal 
Code, Title 16 
Zoning and 
Community 
Development Code, 
Division II Land Use 
and Development, 
Chapters 16.12 – 
16.20 Residential 
Zones (VLDR, LDR, 
MDRL, MDRH, 
HDR) 

Unspecified. “Raising of 
animals other than 
household pets” allowed as 
a Conditional Use in 
residential zones. Chickens 
are considered “other than 
household pets” by 
interpretation. Type III 
review before Hearings 
Officer is required for a 
Conditional Use. 

Not 
required. 

Not required. Not required. Standard 
Process. 

No; 
Conditional 
Use Permit in 
any residential 
zone, 
regardless of 
lot size. 

Tigard Uncertain Tigard Municipal 
Code, Title 18: 
Community 
Development Code, 
Chapter 18.510 
Residential Zoning 
Districts; Also Tigard 
Municipal Code, 
Title 7: Public 
Peace, Safety and 
Morals, Chapter 
7.40 Nuisances  

Unspecified. “Poultry or 
livestock, other than normal 
household pets” are 
permitted as 
“Agriculture/Horticulture” use 
in some Residential zones 
(R-1, R-2, R-3.5, R-4.5, R-7) 
subject to provisions related 
to coop/run location (see 
“Enclosure”). Also limited by 
nuisance regulations, 
including noise. 

Not 
required. 

When an agricultural 
use is adjacent to a 
residential use, poultry 
or livestock may not be 
“housed or provided use 
of a fenced run within 
100 feet of any nearby 
residence except a 
dwelling on the same 
lot”. 

Not required. Standard 
Process. 

No. 

Wilsonville Current Sherwood General “Livestock and farm animals” Not Under existing Section Under existing Standard No. 

Attachment B - Page 11



 
City 

Status of 
Regulation Type of Regulation Number Allowed Permit Enclosure Inspection 

Code 
Enforcement 

Lot Size 

regulations in 
place since 
1969. Drafting 
revisions, but 
had not been 
seen by 
Planning 
Commission as 
of 06-21-10. 
May be seen 
by Planning 
Commission 
within next few 
months. 

Development 
Regulations, 
Chapter 4: Planning 
and Land 
Development, 
Section 4.162: 
General Regulations 
– Livestock and 
Farm Animals. 

permitted as accessory use 
to single-family and multiple 
family dwellings. Unspecified 
number of “poultry and fowl” 
allowed per Section 4.162 
under current regulations. 
Draft revisions likely will limit 
to 3 chickens, no roosters; 
may have permit process for 
more than 3 chickens.  

required 
under 
existing 
Section 
4.162. 
Permit may 
be  required 
for more 
than 3 
chickens 
under 
revised 
regulations. 

4.162, pens may not be 
located closer than 100 
ft from any residence 
other than that of the 
owner. Chickens and/or 
fowl must be properly 
caged or housed, 
proper sanitation must 
be maintained, food 
must be stored in metal 
or other rodent-proof 
receptacles. Revised 
regulations will reduce 
separation distance 
from 100 ft to 20 ft, with 
permit process required 
if a greater distance 
(+50 ft) is requested due 
to complaints. 

Section 4.162, 
complaint-
based public 
hearing 
process 
before 
Development 
Review Board. 
Conditions or 
restrictions 
may be 
imposed, 
including 
prohibition of 
raising 
livestock and 
farm animals 
on the subject 
site. 

Process. 

 

Attachment B - Page 12



ra.gt: 1 VI I 

Chapter 13.05 Specified Animal Regulations 

-Note 
(New Chapter substituted by Ordinance No. 166281, effectiveFeb. 24, 1993.) 

-----------------------------
13.05.005 Definitions. 

(Amended by Ordinance Nos. 172635 and 181539, effective February 15,2008.) As used in this 
Chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

A. "Director" means the Director of the Mnltnomah County Health Department Vector and Nuisance 
Control, or the director's designee. ' 

B. "Keeper" means any person or legal entity who harbors, cares for, exercises control over or 
knowingly permits any animal to remain on premises occupied by that person for a period of time not 
less than 72 hours or someone who accepted the animal for purposes of safe keeping. 

C. "Livestock" means animals including, but not liruited to, fowl, horses, mules, burros, asses, cattle, 
sheep, goats, llamas, emu, ostriches, rabbits, swine, or other farm animals excluding dogs and cats. 

D. "Person" means any natural person, association, partnership, firm, or corporation. 

E. "A Secure Enclosure" shall be: 

1. A fully fenced pen, kennel or structure that shall remain locked with a padlock or a 
combination lock. Such pen, kennel or structure must have secure sides, minimum of five 
feet high, and the director may require a secure top attached to the sides, and a secure 
bottom or floor attached to the sides of the structure or the sides must be embedded in the 
ground no less than one foot. The structure must be in compliance with the jurisdiction's 
building code. 

2. A house or garage. Where a house or garage is used as a secure enclosure, the house or 
garage shall have latched doors kept in good repair to prevent the accidental escape of the 
specified animal. A house, garage, patio, porch, or any part of the house or condition of the 
structure is not a secure enclosure if the structure would allow the specified animal to exit 
the structure of its own volition; or 

http://www.portlandonline.com!auditor/index.cfin ?cce _ 28228 yrint= 1 &' 

Attachment C 
City of Portland - Chapter 13.05 

Specified Animal Regulations 
Attachment B - Page 13



F. "Specified Animals" means bees or livestock. 

G. "Specified Animal Facility" means a p.ermitted site for the keeping of one or more specified 
animals, including but not limited to a stable, structure, or other form of enclosure. 

H. "Stable" means any place used for housing one or more domesticated animals or livestock, whether 
such stable is vacant or in actual use. 

I. "Sufficient liability insurance" means, at a minimum, insurance in a single incident amount of not 
less than $50,000 for personal injury and property damages, covering all claims per occurrence, plus 
costs of defense. 

13.05.010 Administration and Enforcement; Powers and Duties of Director. 
A. It shall be the responsibility of the Director, and such other persons as the Director may designate, to 
enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 

B. Persons designated by the Director to enforce this Chapter shall bear satisfactory identification 
reflecting the authority under which they act, which identification shall be shown to any person 
requesting it. 

C. The Director may adopt procedures and forms necessary for administering and exercising the 
authority under this Chapter. 

13.05.015 Permit Required for Specified Animal Facility. 

(Amended by Ordinance Nos. 167649, 168900 and 181539, effective February 15,2008.) 

A. No person shall operate or maintain any specified animal facility unless a permit has first been 
obtained from the Director. 

B. Applications for specified animal facility permits shall be made upon forms furnished by the 
Director, and shall be accompanied by payment of the required fee. Specified animal facility permits 
shall be valid from the date of issuance until such time a the Director determines by inspection that the 
facility is not being maintained in compliance with the issuance criteria. Applications for a specified 
animal facility permit shall be accompanied by adequate evidence, as determined by the Director, that 
the applicant has notified all of the property owners and residents within 150 feet of the property lines of 
the property on which the specified animal facility will be located. 

http://www.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfrn 'lcce _28228 yrint= 1 &c=28228 7/13/2010 

Attachment B - Page 14



r~vJ Vi/ 

C. The Director shall issue a specified animal facility permit to the applicant, only after the Director 
has reviewed a completed and signed application which grants the Director permission to enter and 
inspect the facility at any reasonable time, and assuring the Director that the issuance criteria have been 
met. lfthe Director has reasonable grounds to believe that an inspection is necessary, the Director shall 
inspect the facility in order to determine whether the issuance criteria have been met. The criteria for 
issuing a specified animal facility permit are as follows: 

1. The facility is in good repalr, capable of being maintained in a clean and in a sanitary 
condition, free of vermin, obnoxious smells and substances; 

2. The facility will not create a nuisance or disturb neighboring residents due to noise, 
odor, damage or threats to public health; 

3. The facility will reasonably prevent the specified animal from roaming at large. When 
necessary for the protection of the public health and safety, the Director may require the 
specified animal be kept or confined in a secure enclosure so that the animal will not 
constitute a danger to human life or property; 

4. Adequate safeguards are made to prevent unauthorized access to the specified animal by 
general members of the public; 

5. The health or well being of the animal will not be in any way endangered by the manner 
of keeping or confmement; 

6. The facility will be adequately lighted and ventilated; 

7. The facility is located on the applicant's property so as to be at least 15 feet from any 
building used or capable of being used for human habitation, not including the applicant's 
own dwelling. Facilities for keeping bees, such as beehives or apiaries, shall be at least 15 
feet from any public walkway, street or road, or any public building, park or recreation area, 
or any residential dwelling. Any public walkway, street, or road or any public building, 
park or recreation area, or any residential dwelling, other than that occupied by the 
applicant, that is less than 150 feet from the applicant beehives or apiaries shall be protected 
by a six foot hedgerow, partition, fence or similar enclosure around the beehive or apiary, 
installed on the applicant's property. 

http://www.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfm?cce_28228 yrint= 1 &c=28228 7/13/2010 
Attachment B - Page 15



'" -0- • ...-0 < 

8. If applicable, the structure must comply with the City's building code and must be 
consistent with the requirements of any applicable zoning code, condition of approval of a 
land use decision or other land use regulation; and 

9. The applicant shall demonstrate, to the Director's satisfaction, sufficient ability to 
respond to any claims for damages for personal injury or property damage which may be 
caused by any specified animal kept at the facility. 

a. The Director may require the applicant to provide proof of sufficient 
liability Insurance to respond to damages for any personal or property damages 
caused by any specified animal kept at the facility. The insurance shall provide 
that the insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered so as to be out of 
compliance with the requirements of this Chapter without thirty (30) days 
written notice first being given to the Director. The applicant shall provide a 
certificate of insurance to the Director within ten (10) days of the issuance of 
the permit. The Director shall revoke the permit upon any failure to maintain 
sufficient liability insurance as required under this subsection. 

D. Each specified animal facility permit issued by the Director shall be conditioned on the applicant 
maintaining the facility in compliance with each of the issuance criteria. If the Director determines by 
inspection that the specified animal facility is not being maintained in compliance with the issuance 
criteria, the specified animal facility permit shall no longer be valid and shall be revoked. Before 
operation of the facility resumes, submission of a new application for a specified animal facility permit 
accompanied by payment of the permit fees shall be required, and the facility shall not be allowed to 
operate until such time as the Director has inspected the facility and determined that all issuance criteria 
have been met. The Director may impose other conditions on the permit, including but not limited to, a 
bond or security deposit necessary to protect the public health or safety. 

E. A person keeping a total of three or fewer chickens, ducks, doves, pigeons, pygmy goats or rabbits 
shall not be required to obtain a specified animal facility permit. If the Director determines that the 
keeper is allowing such animals to roam at large, or is not keeping such animals in a clean and sanitary 
condition, free of vermin, obnoxious smells and substances, then the person shall be required to apply 
for a facility permit to keep such animals at the site. 

F. These provisions for specified animal control are intended to provide city-wide regulations for 
keeping specified animals within the City. However, due to the variety of animals covered by these 
regulations and the circumstances under which they may be kept, these regulations should be applied 
with flexibility. Variances provide flexibility for unusual situations, while maintaining control of 
specified animals in an urban setting. The Director should grant variances if the proposal meets the 
intended purpose ofthe regulation, while not complying with the strict literal requirements. 

1. Applicants for a specified animal permit may request a variance from the requirements 

http://www.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfrn?cce_28228-.print=. 1 &c=28228 7113/2010 

Attachment B - Page 16



set forth in Section 13.05.015 C. In determining whether to grant a variance request, the 
Director shall consider the following criteria: 

a. Impacts resulting from the proposed variance will be mitigated as much as 
possible; 

h. If more than one variance is proposed, the cumulative iropact would still be 
consistent with the overall purpose of the regulations; and, 

c. If in a residential area, the proposed variance will not significantly detract 
from the public health or safety in the area. 

2. The Director may iropose conditions on any variance, as may be appropriate to protect 
the public health or safety or the health or safety of the animals. 

a. The Director may, at any time, revoke any variance, or amend the 
conditions thereof, as may be appropriate to protect the public health or safety 
or the health or safety of the animals. 

h. Failure to comply with the conditions of any variance issued under Section 
13.05.015 F is a violation of this Chapter. . 

13.05.020 Permit Fees. 

(Amended by Ordinance Nos. 168900 and 181539, effective February 15,2008.) 

A. The application for a specified animal facility permit shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable fee. 

B. The Director may establish application fees at amounts reasonably calculated to cover the costs of 
administration and enforcement of the specified aniroal facility program. Before such fees may become 
effective, the Director shall submit the fee schedule to the Portland City Council for review and approval 
by ordinance. 

13.05.025 Unsanitary Facilities and revocation of permit. 
A. All specified animal facilities shall be open at all times for inspection by the Director. If an 
inspection reveals that any provision in this Chapter is violated, the Director shall give written notice to 

http://www.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfin ?cce _28228 yrint= 1 &c=28228 7/13/2010 
Attachment B - Page 17



the keeper or other responsible person, specifying the violation and requiring that the violation be 
corrected within 48 hours. If the violation is not corrected within the period specified, the Director may 
revoke the specified animal facility permit. 

B. The Director may revoke any specified animal facility permit upon determining that the facility no 
longer meets the conditions required for the issuance of a permit or that the permit was issued upon 
fraudulent or untrue representations or that the person holding the permit has violated any of the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

13.05.030 Seamless Banded Pigeon Permits. 
Any keeper of pigeons generally known as ii€c:eseamlessa€O banded pigeons, recognized by the 
National Association of Pigeon Fanciers, such as flying tipplers, tumblers, homing pigeons or rollers, 
may, after obtaining the signed consent of two-thirds of the total number of property owners and 
occupants residing within property 200 feet from the property lines of the property where such pigeons 
are kept, obtain from the Director a permit to release such pigeons for exercise or performance at stated 
times or intervals. The Director may impose such other conditions on the permit as are necessary to 
maintain the public safety and health. 

13.05.035 Livestock within Fifty Feet of Residence. 
It is unlawful to picket any livestock, or allow any livestock to roam, so that it may approach within 50 
feet of any building used as a residence, or any commercial building in which foodstuff is prepared, kept 
or sold. 

13.05.040 Diseased Animals to be Confined. 
A. It is unlawful for any specified animal keeper who has reason to believe that the animal is infected 
with mange, eczema or other disease contagious to animals, or who has been notified as provided in 
Subsection C hereof, not to confine such animal until the animal is examined and declared free of 
disease by a licensed veterinarian or by the Director. 

B. It is unlawful for any specified animal keeper who has reason to believe that the animal is infected 
with ringworm, hepatitis, rabies or other disease contagious to humans, or who has been notified as 
provided in Subsection C hereof, not to confme such animal until the animal is examined and declared 
free of disease by a licensed veterinarian or by the Director. 

C. If the Director fmds, after investigation, that there is a preponderance of evidence indicating that any 
specified animal is infected with a contagious disease, the Director shall issue written notice to the 
keeper of such animal, requiring the keeper to confme such animal until it is examined and declared free 
of disease by a licensed veterinarian or the Director. 

D. The Director may initiate an investigation under Subsection C hereof upon receipt of a signed 
statement by any person indicating that a certain animal is infected with a contagious disease. 

13.05.045 Civil Penalties and Additional Restrictions. 

(Amended by Ordinance No. 181539, effective February 15,2008.) All enforcement of this Chapter by 
the Director shall follow the procedures set forth in Multnomah County Code Chapters 15.225 - 15.236 

13.05.050 Appeals. 

http;IIW\\'W.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfrn?cce_ 28228 yrint= 1 &c=28228 7/13/2010 

Attachment B - Page 18



rage / 01 / 

(Repealed by Ordinance No. 181539, effective February 15,2008.) 

http://www.portlandonline.comlauditor/index.cfm?cce_28228-print= I &c=2 8228 7113/2010 
Attachment B - Page 19



Residential Urban Chicken Keeping: 
An Examination of 25 Cities 

Missoula Residents with their backyard chickens. 
Source: http://www.missoula.com!newslnodel226 

KTLaBadie 

CRP 580 Spring 2008 
University of New Mexico 

May 7th 2008 

Attachment D 
Residential Urban Chicken 

Keeping: An Examination of 25 
Cities 

Attachment B - Page 20



Table of Contents 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 4 
Research Methods ............................................................................................................. 5· 
Analysis .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Locating and Understanding the Ordinances ............................................................... 12 
Number of Birds Pennitted ............................................................................................. 7 
Regulation of Roosters .................................................................................................... 8 
Permits and Fees .................................................. ........................................................... 8 
Enclosure Requirements ................................................................................................. 9 
Nuisance Clauses ............................................................................................................ 9 
Slaughtering Restrictions .............................................................................................. 10 
Distance Restrictions ...... .............................................................................................. 10 
Unique Regulations ....................................................................................................... 11 

Findings and Recommendations .................................................................................... 12 
Conclusions ...................................................................................................................... 14 
References ........................................................................................................................ 16 
Appendix A ...................................................................................................................... 17 

25 Ordinances Analyzed ............................................................................................... 17 
Appendix B ...................................................................................................................... 18 

Sources for 25 Ordinances ............................................................................................ 18 
Appendix C ...................................................................................................................... 19 

Example ordinance ........................................................................................................ 19 

2 

Attachment B - Page 21



Abstract 

City councils across the United States and Canada are increasingly being faced with the 

task of deciding whether or not to aJlow chicken keeping in residential backyards. In 

many cases this issue has two opposing sides: those citizens who want to keep chickens 

for egg production and those citizens who are concerned about the effects of chickens on 

their communities. This paper provides an analysis of pro-chicken ordinances from 25 

cities in an effort to define the components of a just and well functioning chicken 

ordinance. Of the 25 ordinances, no two were identical but a variety of common 

regulatory themes were found across cities. Based on these findings, some considerations 

are suggested when forming an urban chicken keeping ordinance. 

3 

Attachment B - Page 22



Introduction 

"I can't say that I would have envisioned chickens as an issue, but Pve heard/rom a lot o/people 
about them, and it seems like it's something maybe we ought to pay a little attention to. n J 

- Stacy Rye, Missoula City Councilwoman 

It's happening right now in cities across the United States and Canada. Community 

members are organizing themselves into groups and approaching their city councils about 

an important urban planning issue: chicken keeping in the city. 

This question of whether or not cities should allow backyard chicken keeping has 

increased substantially over the past 5 years as citizens become more interested in 

participating in their own food production. The issue has appeared recently before city 

councils in Missoula2, Halifax', and Madison4
, and a case is currently pending in Ann 

Arbor, Michigans. In many cases this interest in backyard chicken keeping has been met 

with much opposition and city councils often do not know how to begin approaching the 

issue. 

The recent increase in urban backyard chicken keeping has come about for three main 

reasons. First, the local food movement itself has become very popular which has 

sparked a new interest for many in backyard food production. Since chickens are one of 

the smaller protein producers, they fit well into a backyard food production model. 

Second. rising energy and transportation costs have caused concern over increases in 

food costs, and backyard eggs offer a cheaper solution as they do not have to travel far to 

reach the plate. Lastly, many citizens are becoming increasingly concerned about food 

safety, and with meat recalls and other animal industry issues in the news, backyard 

chickens offer many a safer solution. For these reasons. backyard chickens have become 

1 Moore, Michael. Urban Chickens Scratching up a Controversy in Missoula. . Available online at 
http://www.missoula.comlnewslnodel226 
2 Medley, Ann and Jonathan Stumph. Video: Missoula Squabbles Over Urban Chickens. Available online 
at http://www.newwest.netlcity/article/missoulas_urban_chicken_squabble/C8/J.8/ 
3 CBC News. Halifax to Study Chickens in Cities. Available online at 
http://www.cbc.calconsumerlstory!2008/02/12/chicken-report.htmi 
4 Harrison-Noonan, Dennis. Urban chicken keeper. Madison, Wisconsin. Interviewed on April 8, 2008. 
'Kunselman, Steve. City Councilor (ward 3) Ann Arbor, Michigan. Interviewed on April 29, 2008. 

4 

Attachment B - Page 23



increasingly popular, but not everyone likes the idea of chickens living in their 

neighborhood. 

There are generally two sides to the chicken keeping issue: those who are for allowing 

Gallus domesticus in residential backyards, and those who are opposed. There are a 

variety of reasons why people want to keep chickens, ranging from having a safe source 

of protein to gaining a closer relationship to the food they consume. Those who are 

opposed to backyard chickens however, often express concerns about noise, smells, 

diseases, or the potential for chickens rurming loose. There is also debate between the 

two sides as to the appropriateness of chickens in a city environment and if chickens 

qualify as pets or livestock. 

Chicken keeping in utban environments is nothing new, but it is now something that 

needs to be planned for in all major Cities and small towns across the United States. As 

the interest in the local food movement continues to increase, and as citizens become 

more interested in growing their own food, municipalities will eventually be faced with 

the issue of regulating backyard chicken keeping within their city limits. Planning for 

chickens can either be pro-active on the part of the city council and planning staff, or 

reactionary as citizens will eventually bring the issue to city hall. Municipalities often do 

not know how to approach the chicken keeping issue, and this paper serves to provide 

some insight through an analysis of urban chicken .ordinances from across the United 

States. 

Research Methods 

The main goal of this paper was to analyze how residential backyard chicken keeping is 

regulated through the examination of chicken ordinances from a variety of cities. To 

achieve this, data was gathered through the examination of residential chicken 

ordinances, as well as through a variety of interviews, newspaper articles, video footage, 

and other resources. 

Residential chicken ordinances from over 30 cities were gathered, however only 25 of the 

cities allowed the keeping of chickens, so only those were used in the analysis (see 

5 

Attachment B - Page 24



Appendix A). The ordinances were sourced from city web sites, online web ordinance 

databases, and other online sources (see Appendix B). In a few instances calls were 

made to city planning departments to verify language in the ordinances. 

Interviews were conducted with the following city officials, urban chicken keepers, and 

urban food/gardening community organizations: 

• Steve Kunselman, City Councilor (ward 3) Ann Arbor, Michigan. He proposed 
pro-chicken ordinances for Ann Arbor, which are being voted on in May of 2008. 

• Thomas Kriese: An urban chicken keeper in Redwood, CA and writer about urban 
chickens at http;llmyurbanchickens.blogspot.coml 

• Dennis Harrison-Noonan, urban chicken keeper, Madison, Wisconsin. He was 
involved in the adoption of pro-chicken ordinances for Madison. 

• Debra Lippoldt, Executive Director of Growing Gardens, Portland, OR 

These interviews served to provide personal insights into urban chicken keeping, 

stakeholder positions, and the urban chicken movement. The interviews were also crucial 

in receiving feedback about chicken ordinances and the process involved in legalizing 

chicken keeping. 

Analysis 

Of the 25 cities evaluated, no two were identical in their restrictions and allowances (see 

chart of detailed findings in Appendix A). There were, however, common regulatory 

themes that emerged from the set evaluated. These common themes are as follows: 

• The number of birds permitted per household 

• The regulation of roosters 

• Permits and fees required for keeping chickens 

• Chicken enclosure/containment restrictions 

• Nuisance clauses related to chickens 

• Slaughtering restrictions 

• Coop distance restrictions in relation to homes or property lines 

The findings of the above commonalities, as well as unique regulations that emerged, are 

discussed in detail below. The ease and accessibility of finding the ordinances is also 

discussed. 

6 

Attachment B - Page 25



Number of Birds Permitted 

Of the 25 cities evaluated, only 6 had unclear (or not specifically stated) regulations on 

the numbers of birds permitted, while 13 stated a specific number of birds. Of the 

remaining, 3 cities used lot size to determine the number of chickens permitted, 2 cities 

used distance from property lines as a determining factor, and 1 city placed no limit on 

the number of chickens allowed. Over half of the cities evaluated stated a specific 

number of allowable chickens, which ranged from 2 to 25 birds. The most common 

number of birds permitted was either 3 or 4 birds, which occurred in 8 cities. 

The most common number of birds permitted was 3 or 4, which will supply on average 

between 1 and 2 dozen eggs per week. Depending on the size of the family in the 

household, this may be sufficient. In some cases however, 3 to 4 birds may not be 

enough for larger family sizes or allow for giving away eggs to neighbors. In cities 

where it is legal to sell your eggs at farmers markets, 3 or 4 birds would not be sufficient. 

So what is a good number of chickens to allow in residential backyards for home 

consumption? Thomas Kriese, an urban chicken keeper who writes online about chicken 

keeping and ordinances, feels that no more than 6 birds should be permitted. "That's 

approximately 3 dozen eggs a week which is a LOT of eggs to consume, plus that's a lot 

of food to go through, and excrement to clean up," he stated in a personal 

correspondence.6 

The answer of how many birds to allow is not an easy one, as other factors such as 

average property sizes and controlling for nuisances shonld be considered. A good 

example of how to address the issue surrounding the number of birds is Portland, 

Oregon's chicken ordinance. Portland allows the keeping of 3 birds per household; 

however you are allowed to apply for a permit to keep more (See Appendix A). In this 

case the ordinance is flexible, as a sufficient number of birds are permitted outright, and 

those wishing to keep more can apply to do so. 

6 Kriese, Thomans. Urban chicken keeper, Redwood City, CA Personal correspondence on April 28, 
2008. His coverage of urban chicken ordinances is available online at 
http://myurbanchickens.blogspotcom! 

7 

Attachment B - Page 26



Regulation of Roosters 

The regulations regarding roosters were unclear in 14 cities and in 7 cities the keeping of 

roosters was not pennitted. Of the remaining 4 in which the keeping of roosters was 

permitted, I city allowed roosters if kept a certain distance from neighbors residences, I 

allowed roosters only under 4 months of age, 1 allowed a single rooster per household, 

and 1 placed no restrictions. 

Many cities choose to not allow the keeping of roosters, as neighbors often complain 

about the crowing which can occur at any hour of the day. Since one of the main reasons 

people choose to keep chickens is for the eggs, which roosters do not provide, it is 

generally accepted to only allow hens. In the case of Albuquerque, New Mexico, 1 

rooster is allowed per household but it is still subject to noise ordinances (see Appendix 

A). So in this case, you can keep your rooster if your neighbors do not mind the crowing. 

This does allow people to have more choice, however it can also increase the costs 

associated with enforcing noise complaints. 

Permits and Fees 

The regulation of chickens through city pennits and fees was unclear in 11 of the cities 

evaluated, while 4 required no pennits or associated fees, and 10 required pennits, fees, 

or both. The fees ranged from $5.00 to $40.00, and were either 1 thne fees or annual 

fees. Of the 10 that required pennits/fees, 3 required pennits only if the number of birds 

exceeded a set amount which ranged from 3 to 6 birds. In two instances, it is also 

required that the birds be registered with the state department of agriculture. 

Requiring a pennit for chickens is no different than requiring one for dogs and cats, 

which is the case in most cities. From the perspective of affordable egg production 

however, attaching a large fee to the pennit undermines that purpose. If a fee is too steep 

in price, it can exclude lower income populations from keeping chickens by increasing 

the costs of egg production. Fees may be necessary however to cover the associated costs 

for the municipality to regulate chickens. Another option, which was the approach of 3 

cities, was to allow a certain number of birds with no permit/fee required, and anything 

8 

Attachment B - Page 27



above that required a permit/fee. This allows equal participation and lowered costs, 

while still providing revenue for the regulation of larger bird popUlations. 

Enclosure Requirements 

In 9 cities the ordinances were unclear in regards to enclosure requirements or the 

allowance of free roaming chickens. Of the remaining, 2 had no restrictions and 14 

required that chickens be enclosed and were not pennitted to "run at large". In one case, 

the approval of a coop building plan and use of certain materials was required. 

Over half of the cities evaluated required that chickens be enclosed, and this regulation 

can help to alleviate the concerns of neighbors. Many chicken keepers want to keep their 

chickens confined in a coop and outdoor run, as this helps to protect them from predators. 

However, it is very restrictive to require confinement of chickens at ali times, as many 

keepers enjoy watching their chickens free range about the yard. Just as there are 

regulations for leashing your dog, so too could there be regulation for only allowing 

chickens to roam in their own yard. 

Requiring a building permit with specific material requirements, is also restrictive to 

lower income populations, and takes away from the sustainability of keeping chickens for 

eggs. In many cases, chicken coops are built with scrap materials and suit the desigu 

needs of the owner. Requiring a specific design or materials takes those choices away 

from the chicken keeper. Coops should be treated similar to dog houses, which are 

generally not subject to this type of regulation. 

Nuisance Clauses 

There were a variety of nuisance regulations stated in 17 of the cities evaluated, while the 

remaining 8 cities had unclear nuisance regulations. The nuisances that were stated in the 

17 ordinances included one or more of the following: noise, smells, public health 

concerns, attracting flies and rodents, and cleanliness of coops/disposal of manure. 

Chicken keeping alone does not cause the nuisances listed above, but rather they result 

from improper care and maintenance which can sometimes occur. 

9 

Attachment B - Page 28



A properly shaped ordinance can prevent potential nuisances by establishing clear 

guidelines for chicken care and maintenance, such as only allowing smaller sized flocks 

and not permitting roosters. An active community led education campaign, such as 

chicken keeping classes and coup tours, is another way in which to educate the public to 

ensure proper care and reduce the potential for nuisances. In many cities, chicken 

keeping community organizations have helped to educate the public on how to properly 

keep chickens within the limits of the law, thereby reducing nuisances and complaints. 

Slaughtering Restrictions 

Regulations regarding the slaughtering of chickens in residential areas were unclear in 19 

of the cities evaluated. Of the remaining, 4 allowed slaughtering of chickens while 2 

stated it was illegal to do so. This regulatory theme had the highest level of unknowns, 

most likely due to the issue not being included in the ordinance, or it being stated in 

another section of the general animal ordinances, and not referring specifically to 

chickens. 

Although slaughtering chickens witbin city limits seems gruesome to some, others may 

wish to slaughter their birds for meat. Rogers, Arkansas for example, only allows the 

slaughtering to take place inside (Appendix C), which could help prevent neighbor 

complaints about the process. Allowing for slaughtering however, may also have its 

benefits, such as being a solution to aging urban chickens that no longer produce eggs. 

Distance Restrictions 

Distance restrictions between the location of the chicken coop and property lines, or coop 

and nearby residences, were stated in 16 of the ordinances evaluated. There were no 

restrictions in 3 of the ordinances and 5 were unclear. Of the 16 with distance 

restrictions, 12 were distances required from residences, while 3 were distances required 

from property lines. 'The distance required from property lines ranged from 10 to 90 feet, 

while the distances from residences ranged from 20 to 50 feet. 

If a city chooses to have distance restrictions, the average lot sizes need to be taken into 

consideration. For example, Spokane, W A has a property line distance restriction of 90 

10 

Attachment B - Page 29



feet (see Appendix A), which may be impossible to achieve in many residential yards. 

This large of a requirement would prevent many people from keeping chickens. The 

lower distance requirements, such as 10 or 20 feet are more feasible to achieve for those 

with smaller lot sizes. Distance requirements to neighboring homes (VB. property Jines) 

are also easier achieve as the distance considers part of the neighbors property in addition 

to the chicken keepers property. 

Unique Regulations 

All 25 ordinances evaluated had some combination of the above common themes, but 

there were also some unique regulations that one (or a few) cities had related to 

residential chicken keeping. These unique regulations are as follows: 

• Chicken feed must be stored in rat proof containers 

• Pro-chicken regulations are on a I-year trial basis with only a set 
number of permits issued until the yearly re-evaluation. 

• For every additional 1,000 sq. feet of property above a set minimum, 1 
additional chicken may be added to the property. 

• The allowance of chickens in multi-family zoned areas (allowance in 
single family zoning is most common) 

• Coops must be mobile to protect turf and prevent the bnild up of 
pathogens and waste. 

• Chickens must be provided with veterinary care if ill or injured 

• Minimum square footage requirements per bird for coop/enclosure 

The unique regulations listed offer some innovative solutions to possible issues such as 

pests and waste, as well as defining minimum space and health care standards for 

chickens. Some of these regulations also allow for more flexibility, such as extending 

the right to keep chickens to those living in multi-family dwelling units or allowing more 

birds on larger property sizes. In the case of Portland, ME, the permitting of chickens is 

on a trial basis, which may be a good option if a city wants to reevaluate residential 

chicken keeping after a certain time frame. 

11 

Attachment B - Page 30



Locating and Understanding the Ordinances 

Of the 25 pro-chicken ordinances, very few were actually easy to locate. In most cases, 

pages of code had to be searched in order to find the regulation and even then the chicken 

ordinances were often vague, incomplete, or regulations were spread throughout multiple 

sections of the code. This is an issue that should be considered, as unclear or hard to find 

ordinances can only lead to increased non-compliance. 

The most easily accessible chicken ordinances were those specifically stated on city web 

pages, and those found through websites and literature from urban gardening 

organizations or community groups. One example of easily accessible ordinances is that 

of Rogers, Arkansas (Appendix C). Their chicken ordinance is not only easily accessible 

directly from the city website, but it is also clear and comprehensive. A clearly stated 

and easily accessible ordinance allows resident to know how they can keep chickens 

within the limits of the law, which can reduce complaints and other issues related to non

compliance. 

Findings and Recommendations 

"Issues such as rodent control are a real concern and the ordinance can have a positive influence 
on keeping an already urban issue from being exacerbated any more than it already is". 

- Debra Lippoldt, Executive Director of Growing Gardens, Portland, OR' 

The original question for this paper was ''What is a good urban chicken ordinance?" This 

was based on the idea of examining a variety of ordinances and then singling out those 

that were better than most and could serve as an example. After having conducted the 

analysis however, the question was changed to ''What are the good components and 

considerations that make up ajust and functional urban chicken ordinance?" There is no 

superior "one size fits all" ordinance to regulate urban chickens, as each city has different 

physical, environmental, social, and political needs. 

Although each ordinance will be different from one city to the next, a pro-chicken 

ordinance should be built upon the following considerations: 

'Lippoldt, Debra. Executive Director of Growing Gardens, Portland, OR. Personal Correspondence on 
April 8,2008. 

12 

Attachment B - Page 31



• It satisfies the needs of most stakeholder groups and acknowledges that some 
stakeholders on both sides of the issue will be unwilling to compromise 

• It does not discriminate against certain populations, such as those of lower 
incomes who can not afford high permitting fees, or those with smaller 
property sizes 

• It allows for flexibility and provides choice, such as giving chicken keepers 
the right to choose their own coop design and building materials 

• It allows for citizen input and participation in the ordinance forming process 
to assure that the ordinance fits the needs of, and is supported by the 
community 

• It recognizes the role chickens can play in developing a more sustainable 
urban environment 

• It recognizes the inoportance of the ordinance being clearly stated and easily 
accessible to the public, which will help ensure compliance and reduce 
violations. 

The general considerations above are a good compliment to the specific allowances that 

each municipality chooses to fit its needs and that of its citizens. These specifics 

however can be more difficult to choose and looking to other cities as examples can 

provide insight into the best possible choices. 

The evaluation of 25 different chicken ordinances showed a wide spectrum of choices 

that municipalities have made in the regulating of chickens. Looking at the number of 

chickens permitted, for example, cities ranged anywhere from 2 chickens to unlimited 

chickens. Only allowing for 2 chickens may not be an ideal choice, as they are social 

creatures and if one were to become ill an die, only one chicken would be left. Two 

chickens also do not produce enough eggs for a larger sized family. On the other hand, 

allowing for unlimited chickens may mean increased nuisance enforcement, or allowing 

for that many chickens may be met with increased public opposition. Often the average 

allowances found (not the most extremes) are the best choices of an example regulation 

for other cities to look to when considering the fonnation of their own chicken ordinance. 

In the case of the cities evaluated, the most common allowance was 4 to 6 birds, which 

can provide enough eggs for a family and does not highly increase the potential for 

nuisances. It also allows for a more sustained population if a bird becomes ill and dies. 

13 

Attachment B - Page 32



Another example of the middle ground being a good option would be permitting and fees 

for keeping chickens. In some cities there were high fees for permitting, while in others 

no fee or permit was required. A few cities, which only required permits and fees if you 

have over a certain number of birds, show a good middle ground for how to permit 

chickens. That model allows for citizens to keep a certain number of chickens without 

added costs, while also creating revenue for enforcement and regulation when people 

choose to exceed that amount. Many cities are concerned over increased costs if chicken 

keeping is legalized, and this is one way to alleviate those concerns while still allowing 

citizens to keep chickens. 

In some of the regulatory themes, such as in the examples above, the middle ground does 

provide a choice which can alleviate concerns while still allowing for the keeping of 

chickens. Other regulatory themes, such as the slaughtering of chickens, may come down 

to more of a yes of no answer, as was seen in many of the cities. In either case, if a city is 

going to adopt a pro-chicken ordinance, the most important part is to first allow for the 

keeping of chickens, with the understanding that the ordinance can be revisited and 

changed at a future time. Allowing for the keeping of chickens is the best way to see if 

the concerns surrounding chicken keeping ever come to fruition, and the ordinance can 

then be adjusted accordingly. In many cases, cities adopt a more restrictive ordinance as 

that is what will pass public approval and city council. Then as time passes with few 

complaints or nuisances, those regulations become more relaxed and tailored specifically 

to the needs of the city and its residents. 

Conclusions 

"!t seems that ifwe want to be a town that does its part/or sustainability, this is something we 
ought to consider. I think we want to allow folks to use their good judgment and nwve toward 
more sustainableioodpractices. It - Mayor John Engen. Missoula, MT8 

Many cities and towns are now looking at how they can be more sustainable, and 

allowing urban chickens is one step towards that goal of increased sustainability. Not 

'Moore, Michael. Urban Chickens Scratching up a Controversy in Missoula. Available online at 
http://www.rnissoula.comfnews!nodel226 

14 

Attachment B - Page 33



only can backyard chickens provide residents with a fresh and important food source, but 

they also bring about an increased awareness of our relationship to the food cycle. By 

fonning a just and well thought out pro-chicken ordinance, cities can allow citizens the 

right to keep chickens while also addressing the concerns of other stakeholder groups. 

With that said, city councils should approach the issue of urban chicken keeping with a 

''how'' rather than a "yes" or "no", as a growing list of pro-chicken cities across the 

nation shows that it can be done successfully. 

15 

Attachment B - Page 34



References 

(References for 25 City Ordinances: See Appendix B) 

CBe News. Halifax to Study Chickens in Cities. Available online at 
http://www.cbc.calconsumerlstory/2008/02l12/chicken-report.htrnl 

Harrison-Noonan, Dennis. Urban chicken keeper, Madison, Wisconsin. Interviewed on 
April 8, 2008. 

Just Food. City Chicken Project. City Chicken Guide. Information available online at 
http://www.justfood.orglcityfarms/chickens/ 

Kunselman, Steve. City Councilor (ward 3) Ann Arbor, Michigan. Interviewed on April 
29,2008. 

Kriese, Thomans. Urban chicken keeper, Redwood City, CA. Personal correspondence 
on April 28, 2008. His coverage of urban chicken ordinances is available online at 
http;/lmyurbanchickens.blogspot.coml 

Lippoldt, Debra. Executive Director of Growing Gardens, Portland, OR. Personal 
Correspondence on April 8, 2008. 

Medley, Ann and Jonathan Stumph. Video: Missoula Squabbles Over Urban Chickens. 
Available online at http://www.newwest.netlcity/articlelrnlssoulas_urban3hicken_ 
squabble/C81L81 

Moore, Michael. Urban Chickens Scratching up a Controversy in Missoula. . Available 
online at http://www.rnlssoula.comlnews/node/226 

16 

Attachment B - Page 35



Appendix A 
25 Ordinances Analyzed 

City/State # of birds Roosters PermltJ Enclosure Nuisance Slaughter Property ilne Details or unique 
j)ermlned allowed permit cost reaulred clause permitted restrictions regulations 

Los Angeles, unclear only H 100 unclear unclear Ve. unclear 20 ft from owners 
CA ft from h:le, 35 It 1rom 

nelohbors oe hbors 
Rogers, AK 4 No $5/yr Ve. Ves inside only 25ft from 

n;~·hbOrs house 
Kaywest, FL unclear Ves None Ve. Ves No No Can't USB droppings as 

fertilizer, feed must be 
stored In rat proof 
containers 

Topeka, KS unclear unclear unclear Ve. Ves unclear 50ft from 
neiahbors house 

south 6 No $25/yr Yes, Ve. unclear Ves On trtal basis till 
Portland, ME building November 2008, only 

permit 20 penmlts Issued till 
required • yearlv evaluation 

Madison, WI 4 No $6/yr Ves Ve. No 25 It from 
neklhbors house 

NewVork, Nollmti No Ves No Ves unclear No 
NV 
Albuquerque, 15 1 per None No Ves Ve. No 
NM household 
Portland, OR 3 wilhoul unclear $31 one time Ves Ve, unclear unclear 

penmti fee for 4 + 
Seattle, WA 3 unctear unclear unclear Ves unclear 10 ft from property 1 addlllonal chicken per 

line 1,000 sq It 01 property 
above minimum 

Spokane, WA 1 per unclear unclear unclear unclear unclear 90 It 1rom property Chickens allowed In 
2,000 sq ft nne multi-family zoned areas 
ollend 

San Antonio, property unclear unclear unolear unclear unclear 20 ft minimum 5 birds allowed 20 H 
TX line from another 1rom home, 12 birds at 

dependent dwellina 50 ft 50 birds ellS0 ft 
Honolulu HI 2 unolear unclear unclear unclear unclear unclear 
Oakland, CA unclear No unclear unclear unclear unclear 20ft minimum 

from another 
dwelling 

SI. Louis, MO 4 max. unclear $40 penmti unclear unclear unclear unclear 
without for more than 
penmti 4 birds 

San Diego, 25 unclear unclear unclear Yes unclear 50ft from Feed musl be stored In 
CA nelahbors house ratmoof container 
San Jose, CA dependent only penmti Ves unclear unclear Ranges from 0 to <15 ft = 0 birds allowed. 

on coop to roosters < needed for 6 50 ft. determines 15 to 20 It = 4 bird" elc, 
property 4 months or more birds # of birds up to 50 ft = 25 birds 
line old 

Austin, TX unclear unclear unclear unclear unclear Ves 50ft from 
neighbors house 

Memphis, TN unclear unclear unclear Ves Ves Ves unclear Feed must be stored in 
rat oroot container 

Ft. Worth, TX based on unclear No Ves Ves unclear 50 It from <112 acre = 12 birds, 
lot size n~hbors house >112 acre = 25 birds 

Baltimore, 4 unclear Must register Ves Ves unclear 25 It from Coops must be mobile 
MO wilh animal neighbors house to prevent waste build 

control and up, minimum 2 sq 
Dept of Ag. ftIbIrd, 

Charlotte, NC based on unclear $40/yr Ves Ves unclear 25 It trom property minimum 4 sq. ftlbird, 
lot size line no more than 20Jacre 

Missoula. MT 6 No $15 penmll Yes Yes unclear 20ft from Feed must be stored in 
nEli!Jhbors house rat proof container 

Bolse,ID 3 No unclear Va' unclear unclear unclear 
San 4 Unclear No Ves Yes unclear 20 feet from door 
Francisco, or window of 
CA residence 

17 

Attachment B - Page 36



CltylState 
Los Angeles, CA 

Rogers, AK 

Keywest, FL 

Topeka, KS 
South Portland, ME 

Madison, WI 
New York, NY 

Albuquerque, NM 

Portland, OR 

Seattle, WA 

Spokane, WA 

San Antonio, TX 

Honolulu, HI 

Oakland, CA 

St. Louis, MO 

San Diego, CA 

San Jose, CA 

Austin, TX 

Memphis, TN 

Ft. Worth, TX 
Baltimore, MD 

Charlotte, NC 

Missoula, MT 

Boise,ID 

San Francisco, CA 

AppendixB 
Sources for 25 Ordinances 

Source for Ordinance 
Los Angeles Animal Services. 
httD://www.laanimalservices.oraIDerm~book.Ddf 
Ordinance No. 06-100 
http://www.roaersarkansas.com/clerkichkordlnance.aso 
Part 2, Title 5 Section 62 
www.keywestchickens.com/citv 
Section 18-291 www.munlcode.com 
Chapter 3Article 2 Section 3 
htlp://www.southportland.org/index.asp?Type=B_LlST&SEC={93286E1 E-9FFB-
4OD2-AC30·8840DEB23A291 
htto:/fwww.madcltvchickens.coml and www.municode.com 
Just Food's ctty Chicken Project. C~y Chicken Guide. Information available online 
at http://www.iustfood.ora/cltVtarmsfchlckens/ 
City ordinance chapter 9, article 2, part 4, § 9-2-4-3, c-3 
http://www.amlegal.comlalbuquerque nm/ 
Ordinance 13.05.015 
http://www.Dortlandonline.com/AudltorAndex.cfm?e=28228#cid 13497 
Ordinance 122311 section 23 
www.seattleurbanfarmco.comlchickens 
Title 17 Chapter 17C.310 Section 17C.310.100 
http://www .spokanecitv .ora/servicesldocumentslsmcf?Section-17C.31 0.1 00 
Municipal code 10-112, Keeping offann animals 
www.sanantonlo.Qovfanimalcareihealthcode.asp 
Chapter 7 Section 7-2.5 
www.honolulu.aovfrefs/roh 
Ordinance 6.04.320 
www.oaklandanimalservices.ora 
Ordinance 62853-7 
www.slpl.lib.mo.usfcco/codefdataltl02001.htm 
Ordinance 42.0709 
httD:ffdocs.sandleao.oovlmunicodelmunicodechaoter04fch04art02divislon07 .odf 
Ordinance 7.04.030, 140, &150 
www.sanioseanlmals.comlordinanceslsimc7.04.htm 
Titie 3 Chapter 3-2 
www.amleaal.comfAustln-nxUaatewav.dlllTexaslaustin 
Title 9Chapter 9-80.2,9-68-7 
httD:/fmunicipalcodes.lexlsnexis.com 
Section llA-22a www.municode.com 
Baltimore City Health Code Title 2-106; Titie 10, Subtitles 1 and 3 
www.baltimorehealth.ora/pressf2007 02 02 AnimalReas.odf 
Section 3-102 
http://www.channeck.orgldepartmentsfanimal+controlflocal+ordinances/permitslhtm 
and munlcode.com 
Ordinance Chapter 6 Section 6-12 
ftp:/lwww.ci.missoula.ml.usIPacketsfCouncIU200712007-12-
17fChicken Ordinance.pdf 
Chapter 6 Section 14 
http://www.cityofboise.org/cltLclerkicltycodel0614.pclf and 
http://home.centurytel.neUthecitychickenichickenlaws.html 
San Francisco MuniCipal Health Code Section 37 
http://sfQov.ora/site/acc paQe.asp?id=5476 

18 

Attachment B - Page 37



AppendixC 
Example ordinance 

Rogers,AK 

ORDINANCE NO. 06- 100 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE CONTAINMENT OF FOWL AND OTHER 
ANIMALS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROGERS; AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROGERS, 
ARKANSAS: 
Section 1: It shall be unlawful for any person to permit or allow any domesticated fowl to 
run at large within the corporate limits of the city. It shall be lawful to keep poultry flocks 
of any size in A-I zones of the city, so long as they are confined. 
Section 2: It shall be lawful for any person to keep, permit or allow any fowl within the 
corporate limits of the city in all other zones, except A-I, under the following terms and 
conditions: 
a. No more than four (4) hens shall be allowed for each single-family dwelling. No birds 
shall be allowed in multi-family complexes, including duplexes. 
b. No roosters shall be allowed. 
c. There shall be no outside slaughtering of birds. 
d. All fowl must be kept at all times in a secure enclosure constructed at least two feet 
above the surface of the ground. 
e. Enclosures must be situated at least 25 feet from the nearest neighbor's residence. 
f. Enclosures must be kept in a neat and sanitary condition at all times, and musf be 
cleaned on a regular basis so as to prevent offensive odors. 
g. Persons wishing to keep fowl within the city must obtain a permit from the Office of 
the City Clerk, after an inspection and approval by the Office of Animal Control, and 
must pay a $5.00 annual fee. 
Section 3: The above Section 2 is not intended to apply to the 'ducks and geese in Lake 
Atalanta Park, nor to indoor birds kept as pets, such as, but not limited to, parrots or 
parakeets, nor to the lawful transportation of fowl through the corporate limits of the city. 
Neither shall it apply to poultry kept in areas of the City which are zoned A-I. 
Section 4: Fowl currently existing in the city shall not be "grandfathered" or permitted to 
remain after the effective date of this Ordinance; however, owners of the poultry will 
have 90 days from the effective date to come into compliance with this ordinance. 

Source: http:{/www.rogersarkansas.com!clerklchkordinance.asp 

19 

Attachment B - Page 38



GRESHAM REVISED CODE 

Article 7.17 

KEEPING OF CHICKENS 

Sections: 

7.17.010 
7.17.020 
7.17.030 
7.17.040 
7.17.050 
7.17.060 
7.17.070 

Short Title. 
Defmitions. 
Keeping of Chickens. 
Enclosures. 
Inspection. 
Permit Requirements. 
Violation. 

7.17.010 Short Title. 

GRC Article 7.17 may be cited as the Gresham 
. Chicken Code. 

(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 021041201 oj 

7.17.020 Definitions. 

For purposes of the Gresham Chicken Code, the 
following definitions apply: 

Chicken: The common domestic fowl (Species: 
gallus gallus). 

Cooo: A small enclosure for housing chickens. 

Dwelling: One or more rooms designed for 
residential occupancy by one family and having 
only one cooking facility. 

Family: An individual, or two or more persons 
living together in a dwelling. 

Rear Yard. A space extending the full width of 
the lot or parcel between the primary residence 
building and the rear lot or parcel line. 

Run' An enclosed area where chickens may feed -' 
or exercise. 

Single Family Dwelling: A detached building on 
a single lot or parcel designed for occupancy by 
one family. 
(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 0210412010) 

(7) 23 

7.17.030 Keeping of Chickens. 

(1) A person may keep three or fewer 
chickens with a permit on anyone lot or parceL 
On the lot or parcel where the three or fewer 
chickens are kept the person must have a single 
family dwelling in which the person resides. 

(2) Only chickens greater than four months 
old count towards the total of three. 

(3) No person may keep roosters. 
(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 0210412010) 

7.17.040 Enclosures. 

(1) Chickens must be kept in an enclosed 
coop or run at all times. The coop and run shall 
be located in the rear yard of the lot or parceL 

(2) The coop and run must be kept in good 
repair, capable of being maintained in a clean and 
sanitary condition, free of vermin, and obnoxious 
smells and substances. 

(3) Chickens must be kept in a covered, 
enclosed coop between 10 PM and 7 AM. 

(4) The coop shall have at least two (2) 
square feet of floor space per grown chicken, 

(5) The coop and run and chickens therein 
shall not violate the nuisance code or disturb 
neighboring residents due to noise, odor, damage, 
or thream to public health. 

(6) The coop shall be located at least 25 feet 
from residences on a different lot or parcel and at 
least 10 feet from all property lines. 

(7) The run shall be located at least 10 feet 
from all property lines. 
(Ord. No. 1683,Enaeted, 0210412010) 

7.17.050 Inspection. 

The manager is authorized to make inspection of 
property to effectoate the purposes and public 
benefim of the Gresham Revised Code and 
enforce GRC Article 7.17. Authorization to 

Attachment E 
Gresham Revised Code - Article 

7.17 Keeping of Chickens 

Attachment B - Page 39



GRESHAM REVISED CODE 

inspect shall be pursuant to GRC 7.50.510 and 
GRC 7.50.520, irrespective of whether a permit 
has been granted. 
(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 02104/2010) 

7.17.060 Permit Requirements. 

(1) No person may keep chickens under the 
provisions of this Article without first obtaining a 
permit to keep chickens on their lot or parcel, and 
paying the permit fee prescribed. 

(2) The permit shall be valid for a two-year 
period with the permit period commencing on the 
first day of the month a pennit is issued and ends 
on the first day of the same month two years 
later. 

(3) The permit may be revoked by the 
Manager for any violation of the provisions of 
this Article. 

(4) The permit fee shall be established by 
Council resolution. 

(5) The permit fee may be changed at any 
time by the City, and all permit fees required 
shall be payable in advance at the time of 
application or renewal. 

(6) The permit fee is not refundable under 
any circumstance. 

(7) Applications for a pennit shall be made 
to the city on forms prescribed by the Manager. 
The application shall include a signed statement 
that the applicant will comply with the provisions 
of this article. The manager shall issue a permit 
when application has been approved and payment 
of the required fee has been received. The permit 
shall be exhibited to a police or other officer of 
the City upon demand. 
(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 02104/2010) 

7.17.070 Violation. 

(1) Violation of any section of this Article is 
a Class B violation. Each day a violation 
continues to exist shall constitute a separate 

Feb.tO (7) 24 

violation for which a separate fine or penalty may 
be assessed. 

(2) In the event of a violation of this Article, 
the manager may initiate enforcement action 
pursuant to GRC Article 7.50. 

(3) In addition to subsections (1) and (2) of 
this section, violation of any section of this 
Article shall also constitute a nuisance under 
GRC Article 7.15 and may be enforced as 
provided in ORC Article 7.50. 

(4) Nothing herein shall prevent the manager 
from seeking any other means available at law or 
in equity in order to enforce the provisions of this 
Article. 
(Ord. No. 1683, Enacted, 0210412010) 

Attachment B - Page 40



ATIACHMENT F: PTA10-03 DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 1 of 3 

Additions are underlined 
Deletions are stUOkthFOUgh 

Tualatin Development Code 
Chapter 40 
Low Density Residential Planning District (RL) 

Sections: 
40.020 Permitted Uses. 
40.030 Conditional Uses. 

Section 40.020 Permitted Uses. 
(1) Single-family dwellings, including manufactured homes. 
(2) Agricultural uses of land, such as truck gardening, horticulture, but 

excluding commercial buildings or structures and excluding the raising of animals 
other than normal household pets and chickens as provided in Tualatin Municipal 
Code Chapter 12-2 Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas. 

(3) Home occupations as provided in TDC 34.030 to 34.050. 
(4) Public transit shelters. 
(5) Greenways and Natural Areas, including but not limited to bike and 

pedestrian paths and interpretive stations. 
(6) Residential homes. 
(7) Residential facilities for up to 15 residents, not including staff. 
(8) Family day care provider, provided that all exterior walls and outdoor play 

areas shall be a minimum distance of 400 feet from the exterior walls and pump 
islands of any automobile service station, irrespective of any structures in between. 

(9) Sewer and water pump stations and pressure reading stations. 
(10) Wireless communication facility attached, provided it is not on a single

family dwelling or its accessory structures. 
(11) Accessory dwelling units as provided in TDC 34.300 to 34.310. 
(12) Transportation facilities and improvements. 

Section 40.030 Conditional Uses Permitted. 
The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted as conditional 

uses when authorized in accordance with TDC Chapter 32: 
(1) Common-wall dwellings. 
(2) Condominium dwelling units provided they meet the following standards, 

notwithstanding other provisions of this Code, and meet the reqUirements of ORS 
91.500. 

(a) All units shall be on a primary lot with frontage on a public street 
or in accordance with TDC 36.470. 

Attachment F 
Draft Amendments to Sections 40.020 and 
40.030(4)(m} of the Tualatin Development 
Code to Allow the Keeping of Chickens in 

the Low Density Residential (RL) 
Planning District 

Attachment B - Page 41



ATTACHMENT F: PTA 10-03 DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE - KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 2 of3 

(b) Access to secondary lots and to all buildings on the primary lot 
from public streets shall be guaranteed physically and legally by restrictive 
covenants and homeowners' association bylaws prior to issuance of building 
permits for the project and after approval of the state pursuant to state statutes, or 
in accordance with TDC 36.470. 

(3) Small-lot SUbdivisions conforming to the following standards: 
(a) No small lot subdivision shall have less than ten lots. 
(b) All subdivision improvements shall conform to TDC Chapter 36. 
(c) All dwelling units constructed shall conform to the construction 

standards of the State of Oregon Uniform Building Code as adopted by the City of 
Tualatin. 

(d) A tree survey shall be prepared and submitted as part of the 
conditional use application. This tree survey shall show the location of existing trees 
having a trunk diameter of eight inches or greater, as measured at a point four feet 
above ground level. The purpose of this survey shall be to show that, by utilizing 
the small lot subdivision provisions, a greater number of trees can be preserved 
than would be possible without use of the small lot subdivision provisions. As used 
in this section, the word "tree" means a usually tall, woody plant, distinguished from 
a shrub by having comparatively greater height and characteristically, a single trunk 
rather than stems. 

(e) The small lots: 
(i) Shall be no less than 5,000 and no more than 6,499 square 

feet. 
(ii) When a small lot abuts an existing lot in a City approved 

and recorded subdivision or partition the small lot shall be no more than 500 square 
feet smaller than the size of the abutting lot. For example, a new small lot shall be 
no less than 5,500 square feet if it abuts an existing lot of 6,000 square feet; 5,600 
square feet if it abuts an existing lot of 6,100 square feet; 5,700 square feet if it 
abuts an existing lot of 6,200 square feet; and so on, up to 5,999 square feet if it 
abuts an existing lot of 6,499 square feet. 

(iii) When a small lot is directly across a local street from an 
existing lot in a City approved and recorded subdivision or partition the small lot 
shall be no more than 500 square feet smaller than the lot directly across the 
street. 

(iv) When a Tract or easement is between a small lot and an 
existing lot in a City approved and recorded subdivision or partition the small lot 
shall be separated from the existing lot by at least 50 feet. 

(v) For purposes of this subsection, a small lot is directly 
across the street if one or more of its lot lines, when extended in a straight line 
across the local street, intersect the property line of the lot across the street. 

(vi) When a subdivision is constructed in phases, a small lot 
in a later phase may abut or be directly across a local street from an existing lot 
in an earlier phase. 

(f) The small lots shall be part of a development that contains lots of 
at least 7,000 square feet that are necessitated by trees, steep terrain or other 
topographic constraints. 

Attachment B - Page 42



ATTACHMENT F: PTA10-03 DRAFT CODE LANGUAGE- KEEPING OF CHICKENS 
August 23,2010 
Page 3 of3 

(g) The small lots shall not exceed 35 percent of the lots in the total 
subdivision. 

(h) The number of lots having a minimum area of 7,000 square feet 
shall equal or be greater than the number of small lots in the subdivision. 

(i) The average lot width shall be at least 30 feet. 
m When a lot has frontage on a public street, the minimum lot width 

shall be 50 feet on a street and 30 feet around a cul-de-sac bulb. 
(k) The maximum building coverage for lots 5,000 to 6,499 square 

feet shall be 45 percent and for lots greater than 6,499 square feet shall be 35 
percent. 

(I) For flag lots, the minimum lot width at the street shall be sufficient 
to comply with at least the minimum access requirements contained in TDC 
73.400(7) - (12). 

(4) Other uses as specified below: 
(a) Cemeteries. 
(b) Churches and accessory uses. 
(c) Colleges. 
(d) Community buildings (public). 
(e) Child day care center, if all exterior walls and outdoor play areas 

are a minimum distance of 400 feet from the exterior walls and pump islands of any 
automobile service station, irrespective of any structures in between. 

(f) Governmental structure or land use including public park, 
playground, recreation building, fire station, library or museum. 

(g) Retail nursery. 
(h) Hospital or sanitarium. 
(i) School. 
0) Water reservoir. 
(k) Any business, service, processing, storage or display essential or 

incidental to any permitted use in this zone and not conducted entirely within an 
enclosed building. 

(I) Golf course, country club, private club. 
(m) Agricultural animals, limited to cattle, horses and sheep, and 

agricultural structures such as barns, stables, sheds, but excluding feed lots, in 
areas designated on the Tualatin Community Plan Map. The City Council may limit 
the number of animals to be allowed on a specific parcel of property. Keeping of 
chickens is a permitted use as provided in TDC 40.020 and Tualatin Municipal 
Code Chapter 12-2 Keeping of Chickens in Residential Areas. 

(n) Increased building height to a maximum of 75 feet, if all yards 
adjoining said building are not less than a distance equal to 1 1/2 times the height 
of the building. 

(0) Nursing or convalescent home. 
(p) Retirement housing conforming to the standards in TDC 34.160-

34.170. 
(q) Electrical substation and above ground natural gas pump station. 

Attachment B - Page 43



CINDY HAHN 

From: 
Sent: 

CINDY HAHN 
Monday, October 04,20102:26 PM 
'Sieve Tilus' To; 

Cc: 
. Subject: 

Sherllyn Lombos; AQUILLA HURD·RAVICH; ERIC UNDERWOOD 
RE: Chickens In Salem 

Steve, 

Thank you for forwarding this article about the recently passed chicken regulations In Salem. I have been following these 
as palt of my research on allowing the keeping of chickens in residential areas ofTualatln. . 

Council will be considering the keeping of chickens at the October 25 Work Session, The draft code language that staff 
will be presenting does not, at this time, propose requiring any permits or fees. However, this is the first time Council 
will have seen the proposed code language and they may decide'that permits or fees should be required or that other 
changes are needed to the draft code language, 

Your comments will be included in an attachment to the staff memo to Council, which will be available online one week 
before the October 25 Work Session. If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know. 

Best regards, 

Cindy 

CrM;y L. fl~ AICP 
Assistant Planner 
City of Tualatin I Community Development Department 
Phone: 503.691.3029 I Fax: 503.692.D147 
chahn@ci.tualatin,or.us 

--.. __ .... _ .... _-----
From: steve Titus [mallto:sntltus@gmall.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 10:03 AM 
To: CINDY HAHN 
Subject: Chickens In Salem 

http://www.statesmanjournal.com/mticlef20 1 00928INEWSf928034111 00 1 

Cindy, 

I see they will be charging a $50 license fee to keep chickens, I hope we have some fee included as well to 
cover the cost of a basic "Dos and Don'ts" of keeping chickens in the city. 

Thanks, 

Steve Titus 

1 

Attachment G 
Comment Letter and Emails 

Attachment B - Page 44



~ X::f-/ --<",tV 

To Lv k.?~ ; fr ~c'J CJVl ~C~ /' 

tt: S' 03 - t Ii {'" .- GJ ::<.8)

* I(.:: VV'Oll { 

CITY OF TUALAT 

A 1f/1 : 

:) J,. ,'utc ~'-"" -

-.v,,"o''/ i p>W 

--- / ;;rn f-< ~ / 

11.1 •• I",III., •• II •• "I.II,"IIl".j.lll •• I,/l III II J If f Iff HI 

Attachment B - Page 45



CINDY HAHN 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Council, 

Sherilyn Lombos 
Wednesday, September 08, 2010 1 :48 PM 
lou.ogden@juno.com; Chris Barhyte; Jay Harris; Ed Truax; Donna Maddux; Monique Beikman 
(monique.beikman@gmail.com); Joelle Davis 
willisj@pdx.edu; Doug Rux; CINDY HAHN 
FW: chickens 

See the email below. I will follow-up regarding the website to find out why the emails aren't going through. 

Sherilyn 

Jennie, 
The work session has not occurred yet; it is currently scheduled for the work session of October 25th

. 

Thanks! 
Sherilyn 

From: Jennie Willis [mailto:willisj@pdx.edu] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 08, 2010 1:34 PM 
To: Sherilyn Lombos 
Subject: chickens 

Hi Sherilyn, 

Would you be able to forward this to the city council members? I used the link in the website to e-mail all of the members but it kept 
sending it back with an error message?? 
Thanks for your help. 

Jennie 

Hello all, 

I read recently in the Tualatin newsletter that there was going to be some discussion around allowing homeowners to raise chickens. 
The work session may have already happened, but as a resident here in Tualatin I would like to request Tualatin to allow homeowners 
to have chickens. As a mother with young children, I work hard to provide my family with healthy food choices. Allowing chickens 
would be another way I could do that for me and my family. Allowing chickens would allow me to provide fresh eggs for my family. 
What I know of chickens is that they are not noisy animals (unless you have a rooster, perhaps Tualatin should not allow those??) 
They stay within their established boundaries, and go to sleep when the sun goes down. 

I am sure there are varying opinions about this. I wanted to make sure I cOllllllunicated with all of you about how one family here in 
Tualatin feels about the issue. 

Thank you for all your time and the hard work that you do. 

Sincerely, 

Jennie Willis 

1 

Attachment B - Page 46



CINDY HAHN 

From: Doug Rux 
Sent: 
To: 

Tuesday, August 17, 2010 1:41 PM 
CINDY HAHN 

Subject: FW: What is Tualatin's brand? 

See below. would should have an answer available on Monday on who bans chickens. 

From: Paul Sivley [mailto:psfoto@comcast.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 2010 1:35 PM 
To: Doug Rux; Sherilyn Lombos 
Subject: Fwd: What is Tualatin's brand? 

Just so you aren't caught by surprise by a request for data on cities banning chicken 
raising. 

Paul Sivley, Photographer 
Artistic Portrait, Architectural, Product and Food, Travel, Event, and Wedding Imagery 
503 502 3385 
There is no higher praise than to have someone recommend me to their friends, family, or business 
contacts 
www.paulsivley.com 
All images by Paul Sivley Photography are registered and protected against use without Paul's written approval under U.S. copyright laws 

----- Forwarded Message -----
From: "Paul Sivley" <psfoto@comcast.net> 
To: "Iou ogden" <Iou.ogden@juno.com>, Jay@H-Mc.com, smbeikman@verizon.net, 
madduxOl@verizon.net, etruax@royalaa.com, chris@mustardpeople.com, "joelle d 
davis" <joelle.d.davis@gmail.com>, slombos@ci.tualatin.or.us 
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 20101:33:51 PM 
Subject: What is Tualatin's brand? 

Mayor and Councilmembers 

I'm writing to strongly oppose the draft ordinance governing maintenance of chickens in 
Tualatin's residential areas that will be on your 8/23 work session agenda. 

My main concerns with this proposal are as follows: 

1) there is no public demand for such an ordinance at this time. Staff gets calls from 
people inquiring if chickens are legal, but that's it. No one has asked for this ordinance. 

2) an increase in housing chickens in residential areas will result in increased disputes 
between neighbors over noise, smell, sanitiation, compliance with ordinance coop 
distance requirements and so on. This is not the highest and best use of our already 
taxed staff's time or the city's financial resources. I frankly don't see the value in asking 
a CSO or Planning staff member to investigate disputes given the higher priorities we 

1 

Attachment B - Page 47



face in terms of ordinance enforcement, development and public safety. Why create 
work for staff when no one is really asking for this ordinance? Why ask staff to 
undertake a task that is rather demoralizing based on their training and skill sets? 

3) Some will say hens are quiet and harmless. I believe in a residential neighborhood 
they are unsanitary - look at the flu epidemics in Asia over the past few years which 
originated with poultry. 

4) Finally, it took the city years to get rid of a dog food factory, and now we are talking 
about increasing the keeping of chickens in our neighborhoods. Is this the brand and 
image we want to convey as a modern suburb that is moving forward to people and 
businesses considering locating here? Is our brand one of the past or the future? Do we 
want to add a reputation of chicken farming to one of a strip club haven? I hope we can 
look for positive growth opportunities to counter those who label us thus. 

Staff put together a good presentation before TPAC on cities who have these ordinances 
or are considering them. What I realized after the TPAC review was that we should have 
asked staff for an analysis of what cities have completely banned the keeping of 
chickens in residential areas. I hope you'll ask for this. 

I believe the answer is a solid ban on chicken raising in residential areas, for the reasons 
noted above. Failing that, I urge you to consider an option Lou and I discussed -
putting off action until we have citizen input via the community involvement initiative 
Jan and others are leading. 

Thanks for listening. This may seem a minor issue, but I think it's the most misguided 
initiative I've seen in years of public service - and it's the little things that build our city's 
reputation and brand. 

Paul Sivley, Photographer 
Artistic Portrait, Architectural, Product and Food, Travel, Event, and Wedding Imagery 
5035023385 
There is no higher praise than to have someone recommend me to their friends, family, or business 
contacts 
www.paulsivley.com 
All images by Paul Sivley Photography are registered and protected against use without Paul's written approval under U.S, copyright laws 

2 

Attachment B - Page 48



Attachment C - Page 1



Attachment C - Page 2



Attachment C - Page 3



Attachment C - Page 4



Attachment C - Page 5



Attachment C - Page 6



Attachment C - Page 7



Attachment C - Page 8



Attachment C - Page 9



Attachment C - Page 10



Attachment C - Page 11



Attachment C - Page 12



Attachment C - Page 13



Attachment C - Page 14



Attachment C - Page 15



Attachment C - Page 16



Attachment C - Page 17



Attachment C - Page 18



Attachment C - Page 19



Attachment C - Page 20



Attachment D - Page 1



Attachment D - Page 2



Attachment D - Page 3



Attachment D - Page 4



Attachment D - Page 5



Attachment D - Page 6



Attachment D - Page 7



Attachment D - Page 8



Attachment D - Page 9



Attachment D - Page 10



Attachment D - Page 11



Attachment D - Page 12



Attachment D - Page 13



Attachment D - Page 14



Attachment D - Page 15



Attachment D - Page 16



Attachment D - Page 17



Attachment D - Page 18



Attachment D - Page 19



Attachment D - Page 20



Attachment D - Page 21



Attachment D - Page 22



Attachment D - Page 23



Attachment D - Page 24



Attachment D - Page 25



Attachment D - Page 26



Attachment D - Page 27



Attachment D - Page 28



Attachment D - Page 29



Attachment D - Page 30



Attachment D - Page 31



Attachment D - Page 32



Attachment D - Page 33



Attachment D - Page 34



Attachment D - Page 35



Attachment D - Page 36



Attachment D - Page 37



Attachment D - Page 38



Attachment D - Page 39



Attachment D - Page 40



Attachment D - Page 41



Attachment D - Page 42



Attachment D - Page 43



Attachment D - Page 44



Attachment D - Page 45



Attachment D - Page 46



Attachment D - Page 47



Attachment D - Page 48



Attachment D - Page 49



Attachment D - Page 50



Attachment D - Page 51



Attachment D - Page 52



Attachment D - Page 53



Attachment D - Page 54



Attachment D - Page 55



Attachment D - Page 56



Attachment D - Page 57



Project Update - Chickens 

December 

2012:  Council 

directs staff to 

work with CIO 

presidents on 

input timeline 

January 2013:  

Staff presents 

comment form 

& info packet 

to CIO 

presidents 

April 2013:  

CIOs hold 

annual member 

meetings & 

gather input 

May 2013:  

Staff presents 

CIO input to 

Council for 

discussion & 

direction 

June 2013: If 

Council directs 

staff to prepare 

ordinance, staff 

returns with 

proposed 

timeline 

Attachment E - Page 1



Attachment F - page 1



Attachment F - page 2



Attachment F - page 3



Attachment F - page 4



Attachment F - page 5



Attachment F - page 6



Attachment F - page 7


	Agenda
	Agenda

	ItemB.3.  Summer Activities Update
	ItemB.3._Att1_Attachment A-Summer Activities Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	TEAM Tualatin
	Slide Number 4
	Juanita Pohl Center
	Tualatin Crawfish Festival
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Tualatin Heritage Center
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	ItemD.1.  Approval of the Minutes for the City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting on May 13, 2013
	ItemD.1._Att1_City Council Work Session Minutes of May 13, 2013
	ItemD.1._Att2_City Council Minutes of May 13, 2013
	ItemD.2.  Consideration of Resolution Amending the City of Tualatin Fee Schedule
	ItemD.2._Att1_Attachment A-Resolution w_Exhibit A, Fee Schedule
	ItemD.2._Att2_Attachment B- Fee Schedule w_Mark-Ups
	ItemD.3.  Consideration of Resolution 5144-13 Adopting a Citywide Records Request Policy and Rescinding Resoltion No. 4797-08
	ItemD.3._Att1_Attachment A- Records Request Policy
	City of Tualatin Public Records Policy
	I. Purpose
	II. Policy
	III. Public Records
	IV. Public Records Exempt from Disclosure
	V. Copyrighted Material
	VI. Fees
	VII. Procedure

	VIII. Departmental Duties and Policies
	Fee Schedule

	ItemD.3._Att2_Attachment B- Public Records Request Form
	ItemD.3._Att3_Attachment C- Resolution No. 5144-13
	ItemD.4.  Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Grochan Cellars
	ItemD.4._Att1_Attachment A - Vicinity Map
	ItemD.4._Att2_Attachment B- License Types
	ItemD.4._Att3_Attachment C- Application
	ItemD.5.  Resolution Granting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP-13-01) to Tualatin Animal Clinic
	ItemD.5._Att1_Attachment A_ CUP-13-02 Resolution
	ItemD.6.  Resolution Directing Architectural Review Board Review of Nyberg Rivers Master Plan
	ItemD.6._Att1_Attachment A-Resolution for ARB Review of Master Plan
	ItemD.6._Att2_Attachment B - CenterCal Request for ARB Session
	ItemH.1.  Chickens in Single-Family Areas_ Input from CIOs
	ItemH.1._Att1_A. 12-10-12 Council Work Session Minutes
	ItemH.1._Att2_B. CIO Packet
	Cover memo 2013-01-17
	Chicken Comment Form
	CC Work Session 2010-10-25
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G



	ItemH.1._Att3_C. CIO Comments
	ItemH.1._Att4_D. Individual Comments
	ItemH.1._Att5_E. Project Update Slide
	ItemH.1._Att6_F. Individual Comments recieved after 5_17_13



